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. COMPANY OVERVIEW
1. Company Information

Established in 2006 as Phuong Dong Securities Joint Stock Company, the firm was renamed Tien Phong

Securities Joint Stock Company in April 2019 when it became part of the Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock

Bank (TPBank) ecosystem.

Business name

Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

English Name

Tien Phong Securities Corporation

Abbreviations

TPS

Ticker

ORS

Business License

Securities Business License N0.49/UBCK-GPHDKD issued by the
State Securities Commission for the first time on 29/12/2006, Adjusted
License No. 65/GPDC-UBCK dated 26/08/2024

Business Registration Certificate

Business Registration Certificate No. 0304814339 issued by the
Department of Planning and Investment of Ho Chi Minh City for the
first time on 29/12/2006, last changed for the 17th time on 09/10/2024

Charter capital

VND 3,359,997,430,000 (Three thousand three hundred and fifty-
nine billion nine hundred and ninety-seven million four hundred and
thirty thousand dong)

Head Office

7th Floor, Doji Tower, 81-83-85 Ham Nghi Street, Nguyen Thai Binh
Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City

Phone Number

(84-028) 3911 8014

Fax Number

(84-028) 3911 8015

Website

https://tpbs.com.vn

Logo
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2.

3.

Establishment and development

Time

2006

2007

2010

2019

2020

2021

2022

2023

2024

Essential milestones

Phuong Dong Securities Joint Stock Company was established. Initial charter capital of VND
60 bn.

Increased charter capital to VND 240 bn.

Listed on the Hanoi Stock Exchange.

Changed its name to Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company and increased its charter
capital to VND 400 bn. TPBank became one of the major shareholders.

The Southern TPS Branch was established in Ho Chi Minh City. Increased charter capital to
VND 1,000 bn.

Top 6 bond brokerage market shares listed on HOSE

Increase charter capital to VND 2,000 bn.

Officially listed on HOSE.

Climbed to the Top 2 bond brokerage market shares listed on HOSE.

Honored to receive the Fastest Growing Investment Bank in Vietham 2021 award voted by
The Global Economics.

Focus on developing digital technology in most products and services.

Honored to receive the award "The Most Innovative Digital Transformation Securities
Company in Vietnam" voted by the Global Business Outlook Awards, honored with the "Best
Customer Service Product Solution in Vietham in 2022" awarded by Asian Banking and
Finance Adwards.

Honored as "Typical Technology and Digital Transformation Product" at the Vietnam
Financial Advisory Summit 2023.

FiinRatings assigned the issuer an initial long-term credit rating of "BBB-" with a stable
outlook.

Increased charter capital to nearly VND 3,360 bn.

Awarded two international honors including the Excellent Client Relationship in Investment
Banking & Brokerage by The Business Pinnacle Magazine and the Most innovative Online
Trading Platform in Vietham 2024 awarded by The Global Economics.

Business Scope
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»

Financial Advisory and Securities Investment

Corporate finance consulting.
Mergers & Acquisitions (M&A) Advisory.

Capital market consulting.

»  Securities brokerage and securities services.

>
>

Underwriting the issuance of securities.

Proprietary securities trading.

4. Governance model, business organization and management apparatus
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5. Development orientation

TPS orients synchronous development, revenue diversification based on sustainable development, which are
the strategic goals TPS has been pursuing. TPS's revenue structure is based on the main frame of securities
brokerage and proprietary trading activities. To achieve this strategic goal, the Company has focused on
building a solid foundation of all resources such as people, products, operating technology, etc. By complying
with the framework, the Company will develop additional products and services to suit the needs of each

customer and the market.

TPS is oriented to carry out interactive activities to connect stakeholders to ensure sustainable and

comprehensive development.

Object Goal Action

e Build trust through direct consulting meetings, phone

exchanges, emails to customers and the firm's website.

e Develop and introduce products and services suitable for

each customer group, meeting the needs of customers.
Diversifying  products

Customer and services; Optimize e Improve technology and implement strong digital

- transformation to improve experience and optimize utilities for
utilities for customers

customers.

e Improve the quality of macroeconomics, industry and
company analysis reports to improve the investment

efficiency of customers.

e Strengthen corporate governance and strictly control risks

Enhancing value for and build shareholder trust.

Shareholders ) )
investors e Equal treatment and ensuring shareholders' interests.

e Develop business effectively and sustainably.

Creating motivation to e Build a working environment that brings employees
work and develop, together.

Employee _ _
ensuring the life of o Bujld welfare programs, teambuilding connecting
employees employees with leaders, employees with employees.

Community,  Positive contribution to ) o )
. ) o Fulfill tax payment obligations following the current laws.
society society
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e Support economic development, creating stable jobs for

workers.
e Mobilize capital for the economy.

e Contribute to the development and growth of the financial
markets; actively participated in commenting on amendments

to documents on policies and regulations.

Simultaneously, with the vision towards the goal of being a leading securities company in digital technology, TPS
has constantly developed and upgraded the trading system in addition to connecting with other platforms,
targeting the pioneer in leading financial technology to help customers have different experiences and increase

investment efficiency.

Along with the development of technology, TPS's products and services are increasingly divers. The company
is increasingly improving the quality of services, providing in-depth consulting services and comprehensive
financial solutions to customers, creating a driving force for the development of the company's business

activities.

In addition to the growth target, TPS always targets to develop sustainably on the basis of ensuring
compliance with the law, financial safety, risk control, and making a positive contribution to Vietnam's

economy and society.
6. Risks that may affect business operations

Risks in business operations

The global economy in 2024 will still have major fluctuations, such as geopolitical tensions continuing to escalate,
and some major economies, such as China, growing slowly due to gloomy consumption, the prolonged real estate
crisis, and deflationary pressure that has lasted for more than two years. Europe's economy continues to face
many challenges, from internal political upheavals in the bloc countries to the Russia-Ukraine conflict, which has
pushed the continent's economy into more challenges than ever. In addition, the fact that the Fed (US Federal
Reserve) is cautious—maintaining high interest rates until September, contrary to the expectation of an interest

rate reduction—has contributed greatly to pressure on the global economy.

Despite many difficulties and challenges, the global economy is also gradually recovering after several years of
unexpected shocks from the Covid pandemic, geopolitical tensions, and prolonged high interest rates. Global
inflation continues to cool down, along with the Fed's decision to lower interest rates three times in a row since
September 2024 with a total reduction of 1%, thereby bringing the US policy interest rate to the range of 4.25—

4.5%, which is expected to have a positive impact on the global economy, including Vietnam.
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However, in 2025, the world economy still faces many challenges such as political conflicts that may continue to
escalate and spread, the risk of world trade wars, and the slowdown in economic growth in China and Europe.
In that context, risk management based on sustainable development is a priority for TPS.

TPS's Risk Management System

Risk management activities are considered a focus throughout TPS's sustainable development strategy. TPS
has established and operates the Risk Management System in three routes:

= Route 1: Risk management at the business units and in the professional operation departments.

= Route 2: Identifying, monitoring, measuring, assessing, warning, reporting, and handling risks by the Risk
Management & Compliance Center and the Legal Department.

= Route 3: Independent control activities of Compliance Control, Internal Control, Internal
Audit/Independent Audit, and the Supervisory Board.

The risk management system is established to ensure the ability to identify, measure, control, monitor, and handle
risks effectively.

In 2025, the company is expected to show significant improvement over the prior year, but there are still many
difficulties and challenges, so risk management activities continue to be refined. The company continues to recruit
personnel with extensive experience in risk management, focusing on training to raise awareness and prevent
risks for all employees and departments.

[I. ANNUAL BUSINESS PERFORMANCE 2024
1. Business performance

In 2024, TPS achieved many successes; the scale of total assets grew, profits exceeded the plan, financial
indicators remained healthy, the capital adequacy ratio was high, and liquidity was guaranteed. Specifically, the

achievements are as follows:
- Total assets increased by 62% compared to the beginning of 2024, reaching VND 11,198 bn.

- Margin loan balance reached more than VND 2,880 bn, 2.64 times higher than at the beginning of the year.

The company did not incur any bad debts in 2024, and asset quality remained good.

- Charter capital increased by 68% to VND 3,360 bn, creating a solid source of capital for TPS to expand its

operational scale and increase competitiveness.

- TPS's total short-term and long-term loans were VND 6,498 bn, up 55% compared to the beginning of the

8
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year. Debt ratios increased slightly and remained at a safe level.

- Profit before tax reached the highest level in the past five years, recording VND 481 bn, completing 134.5%

of the profit target for the whole year 2024 set by the General Meeting of Shareholders at VND 358 bn.

- The company's expenses were effectively managed. Specifically, operating revenue in 2024 decreased by

26.4% compared to 2023, but operating expenses decreased at a significantly faster rate of 52.3%, which

facilitated an increase in profit. Management expenses were also well controlled at VND 135 bn in 2024,

nearly equivalent to VND 133 bn in 2023.

- Profitability continued to improve, with the ROA reaching 3.4% and the ROE reaching 9.7%.

- The financial safety ratio as of December 31, 2024, reached 426.61%, far exceeding the prescribed safety

level.

2. Organization and personnel

The Board of Directors, the Supervisory Board and the Board of Directors as of 31/12/2024, including the following

members:
STT Full name Position
Board of Directors
1
Mr. Do Anh Tu Chairman of the Board of Directors
2 Vice Chairman of the Board of
Ms. Truong Thi Hoang Lan Directors and Independent Member
of the Board of Directors
3 Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra Board Members
4 Mr. Ta Quang Luong Board Members

5 Ms. Pham Thi Huyen Trang Board Members
6 Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Tung Board Members

7 Mr. Le Quoc Hung Inde_pendent Member of the Board
of Directors

Supervisory Board

Year of

birth

1962

1978

1976

1989

1989

1979

1986

Qualifications

Associate Doctor -
Republic of
Czechoslovakia.

Bachelor

Bachelor
Bachelor
Bachelor
Bachelor

Master's Degree
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1 Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Tam Head of the Supervisory Board 1986 Master's Degree

2 Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Supervisory Board Member 1976 Bachelor
Phuong

3 Ms. Ngo Thi Le Thanh Supervisory Board Member 1982 Bachelor

Board of Directors, Chief Accountant and other managers

1 Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra General Director 1976 Bachelor
2 Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Tung Chief Financial Officer 1979 Bachelor
3 Ms. Nguyen Thanh Tuyen Chief Accountant 1983 Bachelor

a. Changes in the Board of Directors in 2024

- 06/2024: Mr. Nguyen Van An was relieved of his position as Deputy General Director of TPS.
b. Number employers & employees

By the end of 2024, TPS's total number of employees reached 329, compared to less than 100 at the beginning of
the year. Personnel with university and postgraduate degrees accounted for over 94%.

College Others

Postgraduate
2% 3% E

705

University
88%

c. Summary of policies and changes in policies for employees
Talent Attraction Development

Regarding the human resource apparatus, TPS has gradually consolidated its structure and improved the
quality of personnel, perfected the system of internal policies, regulations, and processes, met the objectives

for stable operation and development, and fulfilled the medium-term plan of TPS.

The company continues to maintain a lean business apparatus, promotes the recruitment of high-quality
personnel, and develops a variety of business operations. TPS advocates for in-depth resource development

by assigning personnel with profound knowledge and experience in each business segment.
10
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A salary and bonus mechanism based on performance has been developed to improve labor productivity,

ensure stable income, compete in the market to attract talent, and prepare for future business development.

In addition, the company focuses on promoting professional skills training for employees by expanding policies
to support both the costs and time required for attending courses on professional skills, management, and

securities practice certificates.

Employee Remuneration Policy

TPS always upholds the value of human resources, considering them the most important asset. Therefore,
personnel policies for occasions such as Employee Birthday, International Women's Day, International
Children's Day, and National Day are designed to comprehensively care for employees, encourage individual

creativity and strengths, and attract high-quality human resources.

Ensuring the Health and Safety of Employees
TPS continues to provide annual comprehensive health checks for all employees and the Board of Directors.

In addition, TPS employees are also eligible for health insurance.

Internal Engagement

Internal activities are regularly organized by TPS to facilitate exchanges between the board of directors and
employees, among employees within the same department, and across different departments. These
activities aim to foster an environment of solidarity, increase opportunities for learning and cooperation, bring
people closer together, and generate the strength to work toward a common goal.

TPS considers sports activities as the "golden key" to sustainable and professional development in the
market. The establishment and maintenance of the TPS football team over the years, as well as the
promotion of continuous running tournaments in 2024, have contributed to promoting physical training and
sports, creating a healthy and beneficial playground for employees, while also connecting external

relationships and spreading the spirit of solidarity at TPS.
3. Investment and implementation of projects

Large Investments: None occur, except for proprietary securities trading, which is part of the company's day-

to-day business.

Other Subsidiaries and Investment Companies: No new investments in subsidiaries or other investment

companies are expected to occur in 2024.

4. Financial situation

11



2024 ANNUAL REPORT

VTIPS

TIEN PHONG SECURITIES

Financial situation

Target (VND bn) ] 2023 ] 2024 Change
(Unit: VND bn) (Unit: VND bn)
Total Asset Value 6,932 11,198 61.5%
Net sales 2,822 2,077 -26.4%
Profit from business activities 192 459 139.3%
Other Profits 92 23 -75.2%
Profit before tax 283 481 69.9%
Profit after tax 229 379 65.9%
Major financial indicators
Financial Indicators Year 2023 In 2024
1. Solvency criteria
Short-term payment ratio 4.93 2.61
Fast Payout Ratio 4.93 2.61
2. Indicators of capital structure
Debt-to-total assets ratio 0.63 0.65
Debt-to-equity ratio 1.73 1.86
3. Operational capacity indicators
Inventory Turnover - -
Total Asset Turnover 0.41 0.23
4. Profitability indicators
Profit after tax/Net revenue ratio 0.08 0.18
Profit after tax/Equity ratio 0.09 0.10
Profit after tax/Total assets ratio 0.03 0.03
Return on business/net revenue 0.07 0.22

12
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5. Shareholder structure, change of owner's investment capital

Stock

Content Number of shares

Total number of ORS shares 335,999,743
Number of outstanding shares 335,999,743
Number of freely transferable shares 335,999,743
Number of shares restricted from transfer 0

Shareholder structure closed on 05/03/2025

STT Sharefiolder Shareholders  Shares (D) Rate ()
| Domestic 21,558 335,533,620 3,355,336,200,000  99.86%
-Individual 21,531 290,723,271 2,907,232,710,000 86.52%
-Organization 27 44,810,349 448,103,490,000 13.34%
Il Foreign 36 466,123 4,661,230,000 0.14%
-Individual 28 189,767 1,897,670,000 0.06%
-Organization 8 273,356 2,733,560,000 0.08%
Total 21,594 335,999,743 3,359,997,430,000 100.00%
Major shareholders
STT Shareholder Name Number of Shares Rate (%)
1 Tien Phong Commercial Joint Stock Bank 30,273,600 9.01%
2 Nguyen Thi Van Anh 18,228,272 5.43%

13
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Changes in the owner's investment capital
Changes in the owner's investment capital in 2024:

- 4/2024: Increase the charter capital to VND 3,000,000,000,000 by issuing additional shares in the form
of issuing share options to existing shareholders.

- 8/2024: Increase charter capital to VND 3,359,997,430,000 by issuing shares to pay dividends.
Treasury stock transactions to be carried out in 2024: None

Other securities:
- Other securities issuances conducted during the year: none

- The Company's outstanding bonds:

Circulating value at Current
Release Bond Code | Maturity
par value Interest Bond term
Date (VSDC) Date
(bn VND) Rate
20/04/2021 ORS12101 1.000 9.2%l/year 05 years 20/04/2026
24/05/2022 ORS12202 500 9.2%l/year 05 years 24/05/2027
28/06/2022 ORS12203 500 9.2%l/year 05 years 28/06/2027
03/07/2023 ORS12304 1.000 11.0%lyear 05 years 03/07/2028
Total 3.000

6. The Company's environmental and social impact report
Environmental impact and energy consumption

In parallel with sustainable development, TPS places the utmost importance on environmental protection. TPS is
always mindful of complying with environmental regulations and standards and implements energy-saving
measures for electricity, air conditioning, water, paper, and printing ink within the company, with the aim of

avoiding waste and minimizing environmental impact.

In 2024, TPS did not record any cases of sanctions or warnings related to non-compliance with environmental

protection laws and regulations.

14
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Positive contribution to the State Budget

TPS consistently fulfills all tax obligations in accordance with current laws. The company considers meeting its
financial obligations to the State an important duty, contributing to the development, socio-economic progress,
and stability of Vietham. Once a loss-making Oriental Securities Company, TPS has continuously strived to
develop its business, generating profits from the first year after restructuring in 2019. Thanks to appropriate
business orientations and strategies, TPS has consistently generated profits and steadily contributed to the State
Budget.

In 2024, despite many economic difficulties and challenges, TPS maintained stable operations and growth, with

total revenue of nearly VND 2,106 bn and a profit after tax exceeding VND 379 bn.
The total taxes and payables to the State were VND 265 bn in 2023 and VND 355 bn in 2024.
Strengthening social responsibility

The company consistently ensures insurance, bonuses, and other welfare benefits as prescribed (including the
13th-month salary, performance-based salary, Tet holiday benefits, telephone allowances, business trip
allowances, travel expenses, periodic health checkups, birthday leave, sick leave, etc.), with the goal of
continually improving the quality of life for employees and contributing to community development and overall

societal progress. TPS also strengthens volunteer work and social security.

In 2024, TPS continued the "Bringing Love to Everyone" initiative at Viet Duc Hospital—supporting pediatric
patients in challenging circumstances who need community assistance—and organized charity trips to the Chuc
Tu Shelter to bring joy and help to children in difficult situations. Additionally, TPS joined nationwide efforts to

donate and support those affected by Typhoon Yagi and the rains and floods in the Northern provinces/cities.

[ll. EXECUTIVE BOARD’S REPORT

1. Evaluating business results

15
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I TPS's business result from 2020 - 2024 (VND bn)

3,000 30.0%
2,721 2,822 °

2,500 25.0%
23.2%
2,000 20.0%
1,500 15.0%
1,000 10.0%
481
500 390 5.0%
. 104
- 0.0%
2020 2021 2022 2023 2024
=== Operating revenue Profit before tax == Profit before tax/Operating revenue ratio

In 2024, TPS achieved many achievements with operating revenue of more than VND 2,077 bn, bringing a pre-
tax profit for the Company to more than VND 481 bn. TPS has completed 134.5% of the pre-tax profit target

compared to the full-year plan.

Operating revenue structure

I Proprietary Trading Activities: includes profit from
financial assets recognized through profit/loss
(FVTPL);

m Proprietary Trading Activities Investment Banking Services: includes fees collected

from financial consultancy and securities issuance
m [nvestment Banking Services underwriting;

Brokerage Activities: includes brokerage fees earned

m Brokerage Activities o . .
from the provision of brokerage services to clients;

m Capital Business Capital Business: includes (i) interest from loans and

receivables and (i) interest from investments held to
m Securities Depository Activities maturity (HTM);
Securities Depository Activities: includes fees for the

v Other Securities Services
1% 15% 1.0% transfer of securities transactions, depository fees,

11.5% 3.0%

and securities balance management fees;
Other Securities Services: includes (i) securities
investment consultancy activities and (ii) other

operating income.

In the operating revenue structure, proprietary trading activities are the largest source of revenue, with profit from

financial assets recorded through profit/loss reaching VND 889 bn. Meanwhile, investment banking services,

16
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brokerage activities, and capital trading experienced significant growth of 134%, 47%, and 107% respectively

compared to 2023, whereas securities depository activities decreased by 97% during the same period.

By the end of 2024, the scale of outstanding loans for margin transactions and advance sales reached VND 2,880

bn, an increase of nearly 164% compared to the beginning of the year. This is the highest level of outstanding

loans recorded in the past five years and is expected to provide a solid foundation for further development of

brokerage and margin lending activities in 2025.

Cost

I Ending margin balance at TPS (VND bn)

3,500
3,000
2,500
2,000
1,500
1,000

500

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024

I Operating expense

1,600.00
1,400.00
1,200.00
1,000.00
800.00
600.00
400.00
200.00
0.00

W 2023 ™ 2024
— [ |
Loss from financial Expenses for Expenses for Expenses for Expenses for
assets at fair value  brokerage services securities custodian  financial advisory other operating
through profit and services services

loss (FVTPL)

In 2024, TPS demonstrated significant improvements in cost control. Specifically, operating expenses were

reduced by 52.3%, compared to a 26.4% decline in operating revenue. Management expenses remained well
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controlled at VND 135 bn in 2024, nearly equivalent to VND 133 bn in 2023. This cost optimization has significantly

enhanced business efficiency and profitability for the Company.

2. Financial situation
TPS's total assets will increase by 61.5% in 2024,

I Total assets and Owner equity reaching approximately VND 11,198 bn, of which
W Owner equity M Total assets short-term assets account for 98.8%, valued at
12,000 VND 11,145 bn. The main components of the total

asset structure include: (i) financial assets recorded

through profit/loss (FVTPL) at VND 3,772 bn, up

10,000

8,000 81% from the beginning of the year; (ii) investments

6,000 held to maturity valued at VND 2,265 bn, compared
to VND 350 bn at the start of 2024; (iii) loans, which

4,000 surged by 164% to VND 2,880 bn; (iv) receivables
5000 from securities services provided by securities
.I I I I companies, which decreased sharply by nearly

37% to VND 1,290 bn; and (v) cash holdings

2020 2021 2022 2023 2024 amounting to approximately VND 534 bn.

In terms of capital structure, equity recorded VND

3,920 bn, an increase of approximately 54.6%

compared to 2023, driven by TPS raising its charter ' equity, Buimers' equity,

35.0%

capital from VND 2,000 bn at the end of 2023 to VND
3,360 bn in 2024 to enhance the company's financial
capacity. Additionally, TPS had about VND 537 bn in
undistributed profit, up 3.7% from the beginning of the __
year. Liabilities increased by 65.6% to VND 7,278 bn, Uabiities. 63.4% e G
of which long-term loans amounted to VND 3,000 bn,
and short-term loans totaled VND 3,498 bn.

In addition to increasing charter capital, TPS has proactively increased short-term loans from commercial banks
to finance short-term capital needs, enhancing business efficiency. This demonstrates TPS's flexibility in capital
utilization, strong reputation in debt repayment, and robust ability to mobilize capital in the current period. TPS

will not face significant bond repayment pressure until 2026.

Key financial indicators have been largely maintained or improved. Although the company increased its use of

short-term loans compared to the previous year, the Debt-to-Equity (Debt/VCSH) and Debt-to-Total Assets ratios
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rose only slightly, remaining at safe levels of 1.86 times and 0.65 times, respectively. The current payment ratio

remains high at 2.61 times.

The financial prudential ratio as of December 31, 2024, reached 426.61%, significantly exceeding the prescribed

safety level and showing a substantial improvement over 2023's 271.92%.

3. Future development plans

The business development plan for 2025 includes:

- Growing revenue and profit sustainably.

- Focusing on developing securities brokerage, margin lending, and proprietary trading activities.

- Continuing to invest in technology infrastructure to maximize customer needs and enhance user experience.

- Strengthening the company's brand recognition through advertising, communication, consulting, analysis,

and introducing new products, services, and technologies.

- Emphasizing internal control and risk management to ensure the safety of the company's products and

business activities, thereby safeguarding the interests of customers and shareholders.
4. The Company's explanation for the audit opinion
a. Audit opinion except on the 2024 financial statements
Basis of the opinion except that of the audit cited:

As presented in Note 38 of the financial statements, on 25 February 2025 and 20 March 2025, bond lots
BCLCH2124001, GKCCH2124001, GKCCH2124002, HISCH2124001, and TCDH2227002 issued by the
following companies: BCG Land Joint Stock Company, Gia Khang Trading and Service Investment Joint Stock
Company, Helios Investment and Services Joint Stock Company, and Tracodi Construction Group Joint Stock
Company were temporarily suspended from trading according to the notification from Hanoi Stock Exchange with
a total value of 8,990 billion VND. These are bond lots for which TPS serves as the advisor, issuing agent,
depository registration agent, payment and transfer management agent, and bondholders' representative. As
presented on Note 8 of the financial statements, as of 31 December 2024, the Company has service fee
receivables related to these bonds amounting to 28,025,753,424 Viet Nam Dong. Based on the current
information, we could not obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the recoverability of the
aforementioned receivables. Therefore, we cannot determine whether any adjustments to these figures and

relevant items in the financial statement are necessary.

Auditor's opinion
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In our opinion, except for the possible effects the matters described in the “Basis for qualified audit opinion”
paragraph, the financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of
the Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of its operations, its cash flows and its changes in
owner’s equity for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards, Viethamese
Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance applicable to securities companies and other statutory

requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.
b. Company Explanation

On February 25, 2025, and March 20, 2025, bond lots BCLCH2124001, GKCCH2124001, GKCCH2124002,
HISCH2124001, and TCDH2227002, issued by BCG Land Joint Stock Company, Gia Khang Investment Trading
and Services Joint Stock Company, Helios Investment and Services Joint Stock Company, and Tracodi
Construction Group Joint Stock Company, with a total value of VND 8,990 bn, were suspended from trading. TPS
served as a consultant, issuing agent, depository registration agent, payment and transfer management agent,
and representative of bondholders for these bonds. As of December 31, 2024, TPS has a service fee receivable
related to these bonds amounting to VND 28,025,753,424. As of the issuance of the audit report, this service fee

remains uncollected, leading the auditor to issue a qualified opinion on the 2024 Audited Financial Statements.

Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company is actively working with BCG Land Joint Stock Company, Gia Khang
Investment Trading and Services Joint Stock Company, Helios Investment and Services Joint Stock Company,

and Tracodi Construction Group Joint Stock Company to recover the outstanding debts.

IV. BOARD OF DIRECTORS' REPORT

1. Evaluation of the Board of Directors of the Company's activities

For the full year of 2024, TPS recorded a profit before tax of VND 481 bn, a 70% rise compared to 2023, exceeding
the annual profit plan by 134%. This growth stemmed from effectively cutting costs despite lower revenue, greatly

boosting business efficiency and profitability.

Total operating revenue for 2024 reached VND 2,077 bn, down 26.4% from 2023, while operating expenses
dropped significantly by 52.3% to VND 971 bn. As a result, gross profit surged by 40.5% to VND 1,106 bn
compared to 2023.

TPS tightly managed securities operations costs at VND 135 bn in 2024, nearly matching the VND 133 bn in
2023.

Margin lending grew remarkably by 163.7% from the year's start, with outstanding loans reaching VND 2,880 bn.

Total assets as of December 31, 2024, grew by 61.5% from the beginning of the year to VND 11,198 bn.
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In 2024, the company successfully raised its equity from VND 2,000 bn to VND 3,360 bn.

TPS consistently upheld a high financial safety ratio for securities firms, achieving an available capital ratio of
426.61% as of December 31, 2024.

2. Evaluation of the Board of Directors on the operation of the Board of Directors of

the Company

The Board of Directors and management carried out key tasks within their authority as defined in the Company

Charter, Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders, and the Board of Directors, including:

. Executing business and investment plans approved by the General Meeting of Shareholders and the

Board of Directors.
. Focusing on developing human resources in core business areas, aligned with the company's strategy.
= Advancing and upgrading IT systems for business products and enhancing customer service quality.

. Finalizing stock dividend payments to shareholders per the 2024 General Meeting of Shareholders’
Resolution, increasing charter capital to VND 3,359,997,430,000.

" Completing the exchange of core underlying securities.
3. Plans and orientations of the Board of Directors

Based on 2024's business results and the company's development strategy, the Board of Directors has outlined

priorities for 2025 to drive stable, sustainable growth while adhering to legal regulations. These priorities include:

= Advancing digitalization and digital transformation to innovate business models, enhance customer

experience, and boost the company's competitiveness.

= Continuously developing new products and services to benefit customers and investors, while improving

consulting and customer care to meet growing demands for high-quality service.

. Reassessing the organizational structure and human resources to align with the business model during

digital transformation.

" Strengthening internal controls and risk management, making timely decisions to minimize risks in the

company's operations.
V. GOVERNANCE DISCLOSURES

1. Board of Directors
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a. Members and structure of the Board of Directors

Date of appointment/re-

STT Board of Directors Position . —
election/dismissal
01  Mr. Do Anh Tu Chairman of the Board of g oj0ction March 15, 2021
Directors
Vice Chairman of the Board Re-election July 26, 2022
of Directors
02 Ms. Truong Thi Hoang Lan
Independent Member of Re-election March 15, 2021
the Board of Directors
03 Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra M.ember of the Board of April 19, 2023 by-election
Directors
04 Mr. Ta Quang Luong M_ember of the Board of Supplementary election April 24, 2024
Directors
05 Ms. Pham Thi Huyen Member of the Board of Supplementary election April 24, 2024
Trang Directors
06 Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Tung M_ember of the Board of Supplementary election April 24, 2024
Directors
07 Mr. Le Quoc Hung Independent Member of Supplementary election April 24, 2024

the Board of Directors

b. Subcommittees of the Board of Directors

The company does not have subcommittees within the Board of Directors.

c. Activities of the Board of Directors

The Board of Directors regularly holds meetings to address matters within its authority. These meetings comply

with the company's Charter and relevant internal regulations.

In 2024, the Board of Directors conducted 23 (twenty-three) meetings, with the attendance rate of each member

detailed as follows:

Stt

01

02

Member of the Board of
Directors

(Mr.) Do Anh Tu

(Mrs.) Truong Thi Hoang Lan

Number of .
. Meeting )
meetings Reasons for not attending
attendance .
attended by the rate the meeting
Board of Directors
23/23 100%
23/23 100%
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03 (Mrs.) Bui Thi Thanh Tra 23/23 100%
04 (Mr.) Ta Quang Luong 14/23 61% Appointed on 24/04/2024
05 (Mrs.) Pham Thi Huyen Trang 14/23 61% Appointed on 24/04/2024
06 (Mrs.) Nguyen Thi Le Tung 14/23 61% Appointed on 24/04/2024
07 (Mr.) Le Quoc Hung 14/23 61% Appointed on 24/04/2024

The content of the Board of Directors meetings and resolutions/decisions of the Board of Directors issued in 2024

are as follows:

Stt

01

02

03

04

05

06

07

Board of Directors'

Resolutions/Decisions

01/2024/NQ-HDQT

02/2024/NQ-HDQT

03/2024/NQ-HDQT

04/2024/NQ-HDQT

05/2024/QD-HDQT

06/2024/NQ-HDQT

07/2024/NQ-HDQT

Date

05/01/2024

22/01/2024

26/02/2024

26/02/2024

21/03/2024

28/03/2024

15/04/2024

Adoption
Content
Rate
Through the closing of the list of
shareholders and the time of stock 100,0%
distribution.
Approved the increase of the Company's
e 100,0%
credit limit at VCB Thang Long.
Organize the annual General Meeting of
100,0%
Shareholders in 2024.
Approved the project to convert the core
} N 100,0%
of the underlying securities.
Approved the plan to handle odd shares,
investors do not register to buy, do not
100,0%
pay the purchase money, the number of
odd shares.
Approve the contents to be submitted to
the General Meeting of Shareholders at
] 100,0%
the 2024 Annual General Meeting of
Shareholders.
Through the continued borrowing,
adjustment and use of credit lines at 100,0%

Joint Stock Commercial Bank for
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Stt

08

09

10

11

12

13

14

15

Board of Directors'

Resolutions/Decisions

08/2024/NQ-HDQT

09/2024/NQ-HDQT

10/2024/NQ-HDQT

11/2024/NQ-HDQT

12/2024/NQ-HDQT

13/2024/NQ-HDQT

14/2024/NQ-HDQT

15/2024/NQ-HDQT

Date

16/04/2024

19/04/2024

13/05/2024

04/06/2024

11/06/2024

25/06/2024

26/06/2024

22/07/2024

Content

Industry and Trade of Vietnam - Branch
1 in Ho Chi Minh City.

Plan to use credit lines at TPBank.

Approve the Company's new charter
capital to implement the procedures for
registering and adjusting the Company's
Enterprise Registration Certificate to
update the Company's new charter
capital (VND 3,000 bn).

Approved the implementation of the

Share Issue to pay dividends.

Approved the last registration date to
exercise the right to receive dividends in
shares during the Stock Offering to pay
dividends.

Through contracts and transactions
between Tien Phong Securities Joint
Stock Company and Tien Phong

Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

Approved the dismissal of the title of
Deputy General Director and the change
of the Person authorized to disclose
information of Tien Phong Securities

Joint Stock Company.

Through the selection of audit units for

the Company.

Through the loan of Tien Phong
Securities Joint Stock Company at An

Binh Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

Adoption

Rate

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

24



2024 ANNUAL REPORT

VTIPS

TIEN PHONG SECURITIES

Stt

16

17

18

19

20

21

22

23

Board of Directors'

Resolutions/Decisions

16/2024/NQ-HDQT

17/2024/NQ-HDQT

18/2024/NQ-HDQT

19/2024/NQ-HDQT

20/2024/NQ-HDQT

21/2024/NQ-HDQT

22/2024/NQ-HDQT

23/2024/NQ-HDQT

Date

14/08/2024

14/08/2024

14/08/2024

04/09/2024

24/09/2024

25/10/2024

23/12/2024

24/12/2024

Content

Through the loan of Tien Phong
Securities Joint Stock Company at
VietCredit.

Through the loan of Tien Phong
Securities Joint Stock Company at Viet

Capital Commercial Joint Stock Bank.

Through the loan of Tien Phong
Securities Joint Stock Company at the
Joint Stock Commercial Bank for Foreign

Trade of Vietham-Thang Long Branch.

Through the loan of Tien Phong
Securities  Joint Stock Company at
Vietnam Prosperity Commercial Joint
Stock Bank.

Approve the Company's new charter
capital to implement the procedures for
registering and adjusting the Company's
Enterprise Registration Certificate to
update the Company's new charter
capital of VND 3,359,997,430,000.

Through borrowing capital and using
credit lines at Vietnam Prosperity

Commercial Joint Stock Bank

Approved the implementation of the
Issue of Purchasing Options to increase

the Company's charter capital

Through the loan of Tien Phong
Securities Joint Stock Company at Joint

Stock Commercial Bank for Industry and

Adoption

Rate

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%

100,0%
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Board of Directors' Adoption

Stt ] o Date Content
Resolutions/Decisions Rate

Trade of Vietnam - Branch 1 Ho Chi Minh
City. HCM

In 2024, the Board of Directors has decided and implemented important work items in the year as follows:

. Successfully held the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders.

Approved a plan to utilize credit lines from several commercial banks to boost capital and enhance
business efficiency.

= Selected Ernst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd. (E&Y) to audit the 2024 Financial Statements and the
Statement of Shareholders’ Contributed Capital following an additional share offering to increase the
company's charter capital.

= Removed the Deputy General Director position.
" Issued shares to pay dividends at a 12% rate.
d. Activities of independent members of the Board of Directors

Independent members of the Board of Directors have focused their oversight on: financial statements and official
announcements about the company's financial performance; internal control and risk management systems;
transactions with related parties; the company's internal audit department; the independence and objectivity of
the independent audit firm and the effectiveness of the audit process; and compliance with legal regulations,
regulatory authority requirements, and the company's internal policies.

2. Supervisory Board

a. Members and structure of the Supervisory Board

STT Supervisory Board Position Date of appointment/re-election/dismissal

Head of Supplementary election April 24, 2024

01 Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Tam Department
02 Ms. Ngo Thi Le Thanh Member Additional election March 11, 2022
03 Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong Member Supplementary election April 24, 2024

26



2024 ANNUAL REPORT YTPS

TIEN PHONG SECURITIES

Head of Dismissal from office from April 24, 2024

04 Ms. Dinh Thi Ngoc Mai Department

05 Ms. Dang Si Thuy Tam Member Dismissal from office from April 24, 2024

b. Summary of meetings of the Supervisory Board and conclusions and recommendations of the

Supervisory Board

In 2024, the Supervisory Board held two meetings on April 24, 2024, and December 27, 2024, with the following

agenda:
. Approved the 2024 work plan of the Supervisory Board;

" Comprehensively reviewed and assessed the business performance, financial situation, and transactions

between the Company and related parties in 2024.
C. Activities of the Supervisory Board in 2024

Supervisory activities of the Supervisory Board for the Board of Directors, Management, and

shareholders
During the reporting period, the Supervisory Board conducted the following supervisory activities:

] Attended 100% of briefings between the Board of Directors and Management to closely monitor the
Company’s operations, ensuring the effective use of the Company’s assets and operations to benefit

shareholders.

] Regularly inspected and supervised activities to ensure compliance with the law, the Company’s Charter,

and the implementation of resolutions from the General Meeting of Shareholders and the Board of

Directors.
" Periodically monitored the Company’s business activities and financial situation.
" Strengthened the internal management system by reviewing reports from the Internal Audit, Internal

Control, and Risk Management Departments.

" Proposed the selection of an independent auditing firm to audit the semi-annual and full-year financial

statements for 2024.

" Reviewed periodic audit reports, including semi-annual financial statements, annual financial statements,

capital use audit reports, and capital adequacy ratio reports.

" Developed the 2024 work plan for the Supervisory Board.
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Evaluation of coordination between the Supervisory Board, the Board of Directors, Management, and

other management units

The Supervisory Board regularly discussed the Company’s activities with the Board of Directors, Management,
and other management levels. It was provided with sufficient documents and information related to the
Company’s governance, operations, and financial situation to ensure compliance with the law and the
Company’s Charter, as well as to supervise the implementation of resolutions from the General Meeting of

Shareholders and the Board of Directors.
Review of transactions with related parties

Transactions between the Company and related parties were approved in accordance with the provisions of

the Charter and fully disclosed as required by law.
These transactions are listed and disclosed in the Company’s Corporate Governance Report (2024)..
Other activities of the Supervisory Board

] Conducted inspections and controls at the request of shareholders or groups of shareholders owning 5%

or more of ordinary shares.
] Provided feedback on the development of processes and regulations for TPS.
d. Operation plan of the Supervisory Board in 2025

Based on the functions and responsibilities of the Supervisory Board and the Company’s 2025 operation plan,

the Supervisory Board has formulated the following key operation plan for 2025:

] Inspect and supervise the Company’s business activities, management, and administration to ensure

compliance with the law and the Charter.

" Evaluate the completeness, legality, and accuracy of the Company’s financial statements and

performance reports.

" Review contracts and transactions between the Company and related parties, making recommendations

for their approval in accordance with the law and the Charter.

" Supervise the activities of the Board of Directors, the General Director, and other managers and

executives of the Company.

" Fulfill the roles and responsibilities of the Supervisory Board as stipulated in the Charter and resolutions

of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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3. Transactions, remuneration, and benefits of the Board of Directors, Management,

and the Supervisory Board

a. Salaries, bonuses, remuneration, and benefits

The Company pays salaries, bonuses, and remuneration in accordance with the regulations approved in the

Resolution of the 2024 Annual General Meeting of Shareholders and the Company’s policies on salary,

commendation, and welfare.

Other benefits include annual travel programs, health insurance, annual health check-ups, per diem

allowances, and other benefits as per the Company’s internal regulations.

Details of the income of members of the Board of Directors, Management, and the Supervisory Board for the

year are as follows:

Full name

Position

Income in 2024

Board of Directors

Mr. Do Anh Tu President 280,000,000
Ms. Truong Thi Hoang Lan Vice President

and Independent Member 280,000,000
Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra Member 140,000,000
Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Tung Member 100,000,000
Mr. Ta Quang Luong Member 100,000,000
Ms. Pham Thi Huyen Trang Member 100,000,000
Mr. Le Quoc Hung Independent Members 100,000,000
Supervisory Board
Dinh Thi Ngoc Mai Head of Department 20,000,000
Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Tam Head of Department 42,000,000
Ms. Ngo Thi Le Thanh Member 49,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong Member 33,000,000
Ms. Dang Si Thuy Tam Member 16,000,000
General Director 5,040,000,000

29



2024 ANNUAL REPORT YTPS

TIEN PHONG SECURITIES

b. Internal stock trading

Trading of Company shares of insiders, major shareholders and related persons of insiders, major
shareholders

. ) S No. shares No.shares Ownership
Transaction Relationship with insider
) pre- post- pos-
Executioner traders/shareholders ) ) )
transaction transaction transaction

Major Shareholders/Related

Organizations

- Chairman of the Board of Directors

Tien Phong
. ) - Mr. Do Anh Tu
Commercial Joint 18,020,000 30,273,600 9.01%
Stock Bank - Vice Chairman of the Board of
Directors Independent Member of the
Board of Directors - Ms. Truong Thi
Hoang Lan
] ) Organizations related to the Chairman
Vietnam City ]
of the Board of Directors - Mr. Do Anh 7,497,200 12,595,296 3.75%
Investment Co., Ltd.
Tu
Truong Thi Hoang Lan Insider 1,000 1,120 0.0003%
Ta Quang Luong Insider 0 112,000 0.0333%
Nguyen Trat Minh ]
Insider 0 56,000 0.016%
Phuong
Nguyen Thi Van Anh Major shareholders 10,091,700 16,954,056 5.046%

C. Contracts or transactions with insiders

In 2024, the Company did not incur contracts or transactions with the company's insiders and related persons of

the insiders within subsidiaries and companies controlled by the company.
d. Evaluation of the implementation of corporate governance regulations

The Board and the Board of Directors and other managers have fully implemented the regulations on corporate

governance specified in the Charter and the Resolutions of the General Meeting of Shareholders.
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VI. FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024

The 2024 financial statements were audited by Ernst & Young Vietnam Co., Ltd.

The full details of the audited 2024 financial statements are provided in the appendix attached to this report.

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE OF THE COMPANY
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ADDENDUM
AUDITED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS 2024

(Attached to the 2024 Annual Report)
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

GENERAL INFORMATION

THE COMPANY

Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (“the Company”), formerly known as Phuong Dong
Securities Joint Stock Company, is a securities company incorporated under Securities Trading
License No. 49/UBCK-GPHDKD issued by the State Securities Commission on 29 December 2006
and additional amendments.

The current primary activities of the Company are to provide brokerage services; investment and
financial advisory services; securities custodian service; securities trading; underwriting for securities
issues.

The Company’s head office is located at 7' Floor, Doji Building, 81-83-85 Ham Nghi Street, Nguyen
Thai Binh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City. As at 31 December 2024, the Company has one (1)
branch located in Ha Noi.

BOARD OF DIRECTORS

Members of the Board of Directors during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Name _ Title Date of appointment/reappointment

Mr. Do Anh Tu Chairman Reappointed on 15 March 2021

Ms. Truong Thi Hoang Lan Vice-Chairwoman cum Reappointed on 26 July 2022
Independent Member

Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra Member Additional appointed on 19 April 2023

Mr. Ta Quang Luong Member Additional appointed on 24 April 2024

Ms. Pham Thi Huyen Trang Member Additional appeinted on 24 April 2024

Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Tung Member Additional appointed on 24 April 2024

Mr. Le Quoc Hung Independent Member  Additional appointed on 24 April 2024

BOARD QF SUPERVISION

Members of the Board of Supervision during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Name Title Date of adlditional appointment/resignation
Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Tam Head of Board Additional appointed on 24 April 2024

Ms. Ngo Thi Le Thanh Member Additional appointed on 11 March 2022
Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong ~ Mermber Additional appointed on 24 April 2024

Ms. Dinh Thi Ngoc Mai Head of Board Resigned on 24 April 2024

Ms. Dang Si Thuy Tam Member Resigned on 24 April 2024



Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

GENERAL INFORMATION (continued)

MANAGEMENT AND CHIEF ACCOUNTANT

Members of the Management during the year and at the date of this report are as follows:

Name Title Date of appointment/resignation

Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra General Director Appointed an 26 July 2022

Mr. Nguyen Van An Deputy General Director Appointed on 27 June 2023
Resignated on 26 June 2024

Ms. Nguyen Thanh Tuyen Chief Accountant Appointed on 30 September 2022

LEGAL REPRESENTATIVE

The legal representative of the Company during the year and at the date of this report is Ms. Bui Thi
Thanh Tra - General Director. . ;

Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong - Deputy Director of the Risk Management and Compliance has been

authorized by Ms. Bui Thanh Tra - General Director, to sign the accompanying financial report for the
fiscal year ending 31 December 2024, according to Authorization Document No. 06/2025/TPS-UQ

dated 24 February 2025,
AUDITORS

The auditor of the Company is Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited.



Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

REPORT OF MANAGEMENT

Management of Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (“the Company”) is pleased to present
this report and the financial statements of the Company for the year ended 31 December 2024,

MANAGEMENT’S RESPONSIBILITY IN RESPECT OF THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Management is responsible for the financial statements of each financial year which give a true and
fair view of the financial position of the Company and of the results of its operations, its cash flows
and its changes in owners’ equity for the year. In preparing those financial statements, management
is required to:

» select suitable accounting policies and then apply them consistently;
» make judgements and estimates thal are reasonable and prudent;

p state whether applicable accounting standards have been followed, subject to any material
departures disclosed and explained in the financial statements; and

» prepare the financial statements on the going concern basis unless it is inappropriate to presume
that the Company will continue its business.

Management is responsible for ensuring that proper accounting records are kept which disclose, with
reasonable accuracy at any time, the financial position of the Company and to ensure that the
accounting records comply with the applied accounting system. Management is also responsible for
safeguarding the assets of the Company and hence for taking reasonable steps for the prevention
and detection of fraud and other irregularities.

Management confirmed that it has complied with the above requirements in preparing the
accompanying financial statements for the year ended 31 December 2024,

STATEMENT BY MANAGEMENT

Management does hereby state that, in its opinion, the accompanying financial statements give a true
and fair view of the financial position of the Company as at 31 December 2024 and of the resuits of
its operations, its cash flows and its changes in owners’ equity far the year then ended in accordance
with Viethamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting
guidance applicable to securities companies and the statutory requirements relevant to the
preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong
Deputy Director of Risk Management and Compliance

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

4 April 2025
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Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited Tel: +84 28 3824 5252
EY 20th Floor, Bitexco Financial Tower Fax: +84 28 38241 5250
Ho Chi Minh City, 5.R. of Vietnam

Building a better
working world

Reference: 11745416/68484567-BCTC

INDEPENDENT AUDITORS’ REPORT
To: The Shareholders of Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company
(“the Company”), as prepared on 4 April 2025 and set out on pages 6 to 67, which comprise the statement
of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the income statement, the cash flow statement and the
statement of changes in owners’ equity for the year then ended and the notes thereto.

Management's responsibility

The Company's management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of the financial
statements in accordance with Vistnamese Accounting Standards, Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting
System, accounting guidance applicable to securities companies and the statutory requirements relevant
to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements, and for such control as management
determines is necessary to enable the preparation and presentation of the financial statements that are
free from material misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditors’ responsibility

Our responsibility is to express an opinion on the financial statements based on our audit. We conducted
our audit in accordance with Vietnamese Standards on Auditing. Those standards require that we comply
with ethical requirements and plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether
the financial statements are free from material misstatement.

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor's judgment, including the
assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial statements, whether due to fraud or
error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor considers internal control relevant to the Company's
preparation and fair presentation of the financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are
appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness
of the Company's internal control. An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting
policies used and the reasonableness of accounting estimates made by management, as well as
evaluating the overall presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a basis for
our audit opinion.

Aomember liom of Frost & Young Global Limited
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Basis for qualified audit opinion

As presented in Note 38 of the financial statements, on 25 February 2025 and 20 March 2025, bond
lots BCLCH2124001, GKCCH2124001, GKCCH2124002, HISCH2124001, and TCDH2227002 issued
by the following companies: BCG Land Joint Stock Company, Gia Khang Trading and Service
Investment Joint Stock Company, Helios Investment and Services Joint Stock Company, and Tracodi
Construction Group Joint Stock Company were temporarily suspended from trading according to the
notification from Hanoi Stock Exchange with a total value of 8,990 billion VND. These are bond lots for
which TPS serves as the advisor, issuing agent, depository registration agent, payment and transfer
management agent, and bondholders' representative. As presented on Note 8 of the financial
statements, as of 31 December 2024, the Company has service fee receivables related to these bonds
amounting to 28,025,753,424 \iet Nam Dong. Based on the current information, we could not obtain
sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the recoverability of the aforementioned receivables.
Therefore, we cannot determine whether any adjustments to these figures and relevant items in the

financial statement are necessary.

Auditor's Opinion

In our opinion, except for the matters described in the “Basis for qualified audit opinion" paragraph, the
financial statements give a true and fair view, in all material respects, of the financial position of the
Company as at 31 December 2024, and of the results of its operations, its cash flows and its changes in
owner's equity for the year then ended in accordance with Vietnamese Accounting Standards,
Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance applicable to securities companies and
other statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and presentation of the financial statements.

Ernst & Young Vietnam Limited

-
i Tran Thi Thu Hien
Deputy General Director Auditor
Audit Practicing Registration Audit Practicing Registration
Certificate No. 0763-2024-004-1 Certificate No 2487-2023-004-1

Ha Chi Minh City, Vietnam

4 April 2025

A mamber firm of Errst & Youno Globa: Limited
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION
as at 31 December 2024

B01-CTCK

: Ending balance Beginning balance
Code | ITEMS Notes VND VND
100 | A. CURRENT ASSETS 11,145,350,890,409 6,877,348,376,033
110 |I. Financial assets 11,141,166,242,765 6,872,604,604,003 |
111 | 1. Cash and cash equivalents | 5 533,855,110,527 1,131,318,438,397
111.1 1.1 Cash 533,855,110,527 1,131,318,438,397
112 | 2. Financial assets at fair value through

profit and loss (FVTPL) 71 3,771,929,150,415 2,079,067,334,458
3. Held to Maturity investments (HTM) T2 2,265,000,000,000 350,000,000,000
114 | 4. Loans il 2,880,437,372,877 1,092,151,690,437
117 | 5. Receivables 359,574,929,550 166,476,612,761
117.1 5.1 Recsivahles from disposal of
financial assets 3 321,363,578,018 160,466,191,600
117.2 5.2 Receivables and accruals from
dividend and interest income 8 38,211,351,531 6,010,421,161
117.4 5.2.1 Accruals for undue dividend
and interest income 38,211,351,631 6,010, 421,161
118 | 6. Advances to suppliers 8 10,231,193,845 3,020,732,000
119 | 7. Receivables from services provided by
the Company 8 1,280,406,118,088 2,045,429,638,514
122 | 8. Other receivables 8 30,563,907.,633 5,140,157 436
129 | 9. Provision for impairment of receivables 8 (832,540,170} -
| 130 | Il. Other current assets 4,186,647,644 4,743,772,030
131 | 1. Advance - 484,443,300
133 | 2. Short-term prepaid expenses 9 4,056,647, 644 2,819,616,233
134 | 3. Short-term deposits, collaterals and
pledges 13 129,000,000 60,832,080
136 | 4. Statutory obligations 8 - 1,378,880,417
200 | B. NON-CURRENT ASSETS 52,779,807,048 54,408,718,724
220 |I. Fixed assets 17,459,320,608 16,619,099,098
221 | 1. Tangible fixed assets 10 8,924 582,060 7,822 732,837
222 1.1 Cost 258,694,022,235 22,233,862,235
223a 1.2 Accumulated depreciation (16,769,440,175) (14,411,129,298)
227 | 2. Intangible fixed assets 11 8,534,738,548 §,796,366,161
228 2.1 Cost 37,648,051,564 34,957,421,564
229a 2.2 Accumulated amortization (29,113,313,0186) (26,161,055,403)
240 | Il. Constructlon in progress 12 6,216,129,809 1,487,279,809
250 | lll. Other non-current assets 29,104,356,631 36,302,339,817
251 [ 1. Long-term deposits, collaterals and
pledges 13 3,345,691,305 3,285,596,089
252 | 2. Long-term prepaid expanses 9 1,213,5643,021 1,928,172,138
253 | 3. Deferred tax asseis 14 12,487,161,153 21,5630,610,438
254 |4. Deposits to Settlement Assistance Fund | 15 12,057,961,152 9,557,961,152
270 | TOTAL ASSETS 11,198,130,697,457 6,931,757,094,757




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)
as at 31 Decemher 2024

BO1-CTCK

Ending balance Beginning balance
Code | ITEMS Naotes VND VD
300 |G. LIABILITIES 7,277,707,609,311 4,395,485,041,182
| 310 |I. Current liabilities 4,277,707,609,311 1,395,485,041,182
211 | 1. Short-term borrowings and financial
leases 16 3,498,000,000,000 1,182,163,600,000
312 1.1 Shori-tenm borrowings 3,488,000,000,000 1,182,163,600,000
318 |2. Payables for securities trading activities | 18 443 535,400,000 1,687,415,000
320 | 3. Short-term trade payables 2,318,357,490 2,699,500,000
322 |4. Statutory obligations 19 48,246,362,195 37,076,531,709
323 | 5. Payables to employees 958,774,027 5,003,239,038
325 | 6. Short-term accrued expenses 20 173,330,375,697 93,222,230,480
327 | 7. Short-term unearned revenues 21 40,349,618,763 12,171,849 444
329 | 8. Other short-tarm payables 22 70,808,721,139 61,560,675,511
340 |Il. Non-current liabilities 3,000,000,000,000 3,000,000,000,000
346 | 1. Long-term bond issuance 17 3,000,000,000,000 3,000,000,000,000
400 | D. OWNERS' EQUITY 3,920,423,088,146 2,636,272,053,5675
410 |l. Owners’ equity 23 3,920,423,088,146 2,536,272,053,575
411 | 1. Share capital 3,365,914,318,000 2,000,877,282,000
411.1 1.1 Capital contribution 3,359,997,430,000 2,000,000,000,000
411.1a 1.1.1 Ordinary shares 3,359,997,430,000 2,000,000,000,000
411.2 1.2 Share premium 5,916,888,000 877,282,000
414 | 2. Charter capital supplementary reserve 8,560,003,820 8,560,003,820
415 | 3. Qperational risk and financial reserve 8,560,003,920 8,560,003,920
417 | 4. Undistributed profit 23.1 537,388,762,306 518,274,763,735
417.1 4.1 Realized profit 599 463,676,096 619,968,548,664
417.2 4.2 Unrealized lass (62,074,813,790) (101,693,784, 628)
440 | TOTAL LIABILITIES AND
OWNERS' EQUITY 11,198,130,697,457 6,931,757,094,757




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued) B01-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024
OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS
Ending balance Beginning balance
Code | ITEMS Notes VIND VIND
A. ASSETS OF THE COMPANY AND
ASSETS MANAGED UNDER
AGREEMENTS
004 | 1. Doubtful debts handled 241 382,857,845,475 402,317,121,558
006 | 2. Outstanding shares (shares) 23.2 335,999,743 200,000,000
008 | 3. Financial assets listed/registered for
frading at the Vietnam GSecurities
Depository and Clearing Corporation .
("VSDC") of the company 2,371,523,440,000 1,151,999,720,000
3.1 Unrestiicted and traded financial
assals 24.2 2,051,623,440,000 1,150,752, 140,000
3.2 Financial assets awaiting for
selflement 24.2 320,000,000,000 1,247,580,000
010 . Financial assets awaiting for arrival of the
Company 24.3 470,000,000,000 537,000,000 |
i 012 | 5. Financial assets which have not been
‘ deposited at VSDC of the Company 24.4 1,221,626,897,700 663,949,464,000
. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMENTS WITH INVESTORS
| 021 . Financial assets listed/registered at
| VSDC of investors | 24.5 34,526,961,633,400 6,353,368,300,800
021.1 a. Unrestricted and traded financial
assels 26,318,302,243,400 4,949,315,210,800
021.4 b. Blocked financial assels 8,185,148,850,000 1,293,301,320,000
021.5 ¢. Financial assets awailing for
settlement 23,510,540,000 110,751,770,000
023 | 2. Financial assets awaiting for arrival of
investors 24.6 87,183,550,000 193,715,405,000
025 | 3. Entitled financial assets of investors 24.7 4.199,247,500 6,115,237,500




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

STATEMENT OF FINANCIAL POSITION (continued)

as at 31 December 2024

OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (continued)

BO1-CTCK

Coadla | [TEMS

Motes

B:ggmm‘ng balance
VND

Ending balance
VND

B. ASSETS AND PAYABLES UNDER
AGREEMENTS WITH INVESTORS
(continued)

026 | 4. Investors' deposits

027 4.1. Investors’ deposits for securities
trading activities managed hy the
Campany
investors investors'

| 031 |5 Payables to

| managed by the Company

031.1 5.1. Payables fto domeslic investors’
deposits for securitiss lrading
activities  managed by lhe
Company

5.2 Payables to forefgn investors’
deposits for securities trading
activities  managed by the
Company

031.2

035 |B. Dividend, bond principal and interest

payables

depaosits for securities trading activities |

24.8

24.9

2410

631,801,969,347 1,042,419,581,603

631,801,969,347 1,042,419,581,603

631,801,969,347 1,042,418,581,603
624,988,692,237

1,040,451,266,799 |

6,813,277,110 1,968,314,804

13,577,523,412 58,778,401,926
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Ms. Le Trang Thuy Dung
Accountant

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

4 April 2025

Ms. Nguyen Thanh Tuyen
Chief Accountant

Mr; 'uyen Trat Minh Phuong
Deputy  Director of  Risk
Management and Compliance




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

INCOME STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024

B0O2-CTCK

Current year Previous year
Cade | ITEMS Notes VD VIND
l. OPERATING INCOME
01 |1. Gain from financial assets at fair value
through profit and loss (“FVTPL") B89, 362,406,578 | 1,301,012,191,463
01.1 1.1 Galn from disposal of financial assets
at FVTPL 25.1 542,211,964,115 302,408,207,693
01.2 1.2 Increase in gain from revaluation of
financial assels al FVTPL 252 176,515,957,614 306,238,945,429
01.3 1.3 Dividend, interesl income from
financial assets at FVTPL 253 | 170,634,574,649 692,367,038 341
2. Gain from Held to Maturity (HTM) 253 42,066,014,643 4,289 178,082
03 | 3. Gain from loans and receivables 25.3 196,240,571,739 110,776,616,161 | .
05 | 4. Revenue from brokerage services 61,321,605,500 41,836,903,286 | 7
08 ! 5. Revenue from investment advisory
service 39,942,699,000 86,120,568,096
09 | 8. Revenue from securities custodian
services 32 868,340,080 | 1,034,418,481,070
10 |7. Revenue from financial advisory services 21,550,109,170 9,204,676,000
11 | 8. Revenue from other aperating activities 26 793,793,711,398 233,837 423,310
20 | Taotal operating income 2,077,145,548,108 2,821,696,037,478
Il. OPERATING EXPENSES
21 | 1. Loss from financial assets at fair value |
through profit and loss (FVTPL) (492,453,912,332) | (1,374,041,619,691) |
21.1 1.1 Loss from disposal of financial assets
at FVTPL 25.1 (363,610,296,317) | (1,246,398,216,889)
21.2 1.2 Lass from revaluation of financial
assets at FVTPL 25.2 (127,853,637,190) (127,021,385,941) |
21.3 1.3 Transaction cosls of acquisition of |
financial assets af FYTPL (789,978,825) (622,016,761)
26 |2. Expenses for trading activities 27 (1,750,323,723) (2,437,417,803)
27 | 3. Expenses for brokerage services 28 (66,725,798,977) (51,938,741,968)
30 |4. Expenses forsecurities custodianservices | 29 (6,858,545,768) (504,885,971,6801)
31 |5 Expenses for financial advisory services 30 (37,413,712,828) {97,016,552,525)
32 | 6. Expenses for other services (365,717,797 466) (3,813,887,887)
40 | Total operating expenses (970,921,091,104) | (2,034,144,191,485)
lll. FINANCE INCOME
42 | 1. Dividend and interest income from
demand deposits 31 5,370,319,382 5437,988,700
50 | Total finance income 5,370,319,392 5,437,988,700
IV. FINANCE EXPENSES
52 | 1. Interest expenses 32 (517,820,855,149) (468,075,559,133)
60 | Total finance expenses (517,820,855,149) {468,075,559,132)
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

INCOME STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024

B02-CTCK

Current year Previous year
Cade | ITEMS Notes VND VND
62 |V. GENERAL AND

ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES 33 (135,054,768,113) (133,119,736,602)

70 |VI. OPERATING PROFIT 458,719,153,134 191,694,538,958
VIl. OTHER INCOME AND EXPENSES

71 | 1. Otherincome 34 23,061,781,467 91,762,675,578

72 | 2. Other expenses 35 (331,093,058) (8,769,182)

80 | Total other operating profit 22,730,688,409 91,753,906,386

90 | VIIl. PROFIT BEFORE TAX 481,449,841,543 283,448,445,344

91 |1. Realized profit 432,787,5621,119 104,230,885,856

92 | 2. Unrealized profit 48,662,320,424 179,217,650,488
100 |IX. CORPORATE INCONIE TAX (CIT)

EXPENSES 36 (102,338,412,972) (54,928,601,524)

100.1 | 1. Current CIT expense 36.2 (93,294,063,667) (21,233,858,960)

100.2 | 2. Deferred CIT expense 36.3 (9,043,449,285) (33,694,742 564)

200 |X. PROFIT AFTER TAX 379,111,428,571 228,519,843,820

11



Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

INCOME STATEMENT (continued) B02-CTCK
for the year ended 31 December 2024
Current year Pravious year
Code | ITEMS Notes VND VND
|
500 | Xl. PROFIT AFTER TAX ATTRIBUTED :
! TO ORDINARY SHARES 379,111,428,571 228,5619,843,820
| 501 | 1. Basic profit per share
| (VND/Share) 23.3 1,135 1,020
502 | 2. Diluted profit per share
(VND/Share) 23.3 1,135 ‘ 1,020
Prepared by: Reviewed by: Approved by: ng/
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Ms. Le Trang Thuy Dung Ms. Nguyen Thanh Tuyen Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong

Accountant Chief Accountant Deputy  Director of  Risk
Management and Compliance

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

4 April 2025
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

CASH FLOW STATEMENT
for the year ended 31 December 2024

B03-CTCK

Current year Previous year |
Code | ITEMS Notes VIND VD
|. CASH FLOWS FROM
OPERATING ACTIVITIES
01 | 1. Profit hefore tax 481,449,841,543 283,448,445,344
02 | 2. Adjustments for 485,752,612,278 470,838,585,264
03 |- Depreciation and amortization expense 5,310,568,490 8,773,447,292
04 |- Provisions 832,540,170 -
06 |- Interestand bond expenses 517,820,855,149 468,075,5659,133
08 | - Accruals interest (38,211,351,531) (6,010,421,161)
10 | 3. Increase in non-monetary expenses 127,853,637,190 127,021,385,941
£ Loss from revaluation of financial
assets at FVTPL 252 127,853,637,190 127,021,385,941
| 18 | 4. Decrease in non-monetary income (176,515,957,614) (306,238,945,429)
19 | - Gain from revaluation of financial assets
at FVTPL 252 (176,515,957,614) (306,238,945,429)
30 | 5. Operating (losses) hefore changes in
warking capital (4,823,898,849,267) (566,137,457,784)
31 | - Increase in financial assets at FVTPL (1,644,199,495,533) (102,071,857,698) |
32 | - Increase in Held to Maturity (HTM) (1,915,000,000,000) (350,000,000,000)
33 | - Increasein loans (1,788,285,682,440) (102,397,737,975)
35 | - (Increase)/decrease receivables from
sale of financial assets (160,897,386,419) 2,438,826,989,400
36 | - Decrease receivables and accruals
from dividend and interest income 6,010,421,161 24,040,280,130
37 | - Decrease/(increase) receivables from
services pravided by the Company 755,023,520,428 (872,076,701,570)
35 | - Decrease in other receivables (25,423,750,197) 7,971,667,765 |
40 | - Decrease in other assets (2,143,819,836) (1,939,802,432)
41 | - Increasef(decrease) in accrued
expenses (excluding interest expenses) 493,403,643,032 (10,372,024,431)
42 | - (Decrease)/increase in prepaid
expenses (522,402,294) 1,240,420,726
43 | - Corporate income tax paid 19 (88,722,153,667) (16,948,098,007)
44 | - Interest expenses paid (489,108,387.964) (481,197 ,983,540)
45 | - (Decrease)fincrease in trade payables (5,490,626,355) 4.719,913,861
47 | - Increasef(decrease) in taxes and
statutory ohligation payables (excluding
CIT paid) 7,975,900,883 (5,165,881,608)
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024

BO3b-CTCK

Current year Previous year
| Code ITEMS Noles VND VND
48 |- (Decrease)increase in payables to
emplayees (4,044,465,011) 5,003,239,038
50 |- Increasel/{decrease) in other payables 37,525,814,947 {1,105,769,770,464)
60 | Net cash (used in)ffrom operating
activities (3,905,358,715,870) 8,932,013,336
Il. CASH FLOWS FROM
INVESTING ACTIVITIES
61 |1. Purchase and construction of fixed
assets, investment properties and
other long-term assets (12,980,618,000) (15,041,425,000)
70 | Net cash used in investing activities {12,980,618,000) ' (15,041,425,000)
ll. CASH FLOWS FROM
FINANCING ACTIVITIES
71 |1. Cash receipt from issuance of shares,
capital contributed by shareholders 1,005,039,606,000 -
73 | 2. Drawdown of borrowings 19,362,500,000,000 13,859,724,860,274
73.2 2.1 Other borrowings 19,362, 500,000,000 13,856,724,860,274
74 | 3. Repayment of borrowings (17,046,663,600,000) | (12,737,561,260,274)
74.3 3.1 Other repayment of borrowings (17,046,663,600,000) | (12,737,561,260,274)
! 80 | Net cash from financing activities 3,320,876,006,000 1,122,163,600,000
90 | NET CASH DURING THE YEAR (597,463,327,870) 1,116,054,188,336
| 101 | CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE BEGINNING OF THE YEAR 5 1,131,318,438,397 15,264,250,061
101.1| 1. Cash 1,131,318,438,397 15,264,250,061
103 | CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS
AT THE END OF THE YEAR 5 533,855,110,527 1,131,318,438,397
; 103.1] 1. Cash 533,855,110,527 1,131,318,438,397
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

CASH FLOW STATEMENT (continued)
for the year ended 31 December 2024

B03-CTCK

GASH FLOWS FROM BROKERAGE AND TRUST ACTIVITIES OF THE CUSTONERS

i Current year Previous year
Code | ITEMS Mates VND ViND
' l
I. Cash flows from brokerage and '
trust activitles of the customers
| 01 | 1. Cash receipts from disposal of
brokerage securities of customers 31,602,836,059,420 14,805,726,372,866
02 |2. Cash payments for acquisition of
brokerage securities of customers (34,967,912,365,200) (15,109,774,397,866)
07 | 3. Cash receipts for settlement of
securities transactions of customers 230,662,975,633,062 230,246,546,943,071
08 |4. Cash payments for securities
lransactions of customers (227,698,516,939,538) | (229,087,006,785,514)
20 | Net (decrease)fincrease in cash
during the year (410,617,612,256) B65,492,132,557
30 |Il. Cash and cash equivalents of the
customers at the beginning of
the year 24.9 1,042,419,681,603 186,927,449,046
31 Cash at banks at the beginning of
the year: 1,042,419,581,603 186,927,449,046
32 - Investors' deposits managed by
the Campany for securities
{rading activities 1,042,419,581,603 186,927,449,048
40 | lll. Cash and cash equivalents of the
customers at the end of the year | 24.9 | 631,801,969,347 1,042,419,581,603 |
1 Cash at banks at the end of the year: 631,801,969,347 1,042,419,581,803 |
42 - Investors' deposits managed by '
the Campany for securities
trading activities 631,801,869,347 1,042,418,581,603
o
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Accountant

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

4 April 2025

15

Ms. Nguyen Thanh Tuyen
Chief Accountant

Deputy

Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong

Director of Risk

Management and Compliance



souendwon pue uswabeuey sy 10 10109117 Andag
Buonud yuipy 181 uainby 1y

JUEIUNOODY {RBIYD
uaAn] yueyl usfnby ‘spy

GZ0E udy

wewalA “AiD Yuiy 143 oH

JUBIUNODDY

Bung Anyy Buelj a7 sIN

mﬂ\m\b\,.\w\.g
/ £/

AQ pamainsy

G.5'ES0'ZLZ'9EE'Z

(o00‘Det’ 265658}

LIS POV arL ThLL

pzg'cve'sLs'eze

:Ag paledaid

SI5°E50°2LZ°9E5T

§52'602'25L°L0E°C

9tL'28D'ETy 0Z6'E - £Z IvLoL
(062 EL6'2L0°2) (626 v52'c69'L0L) |- 6EL'LL8'I9'6E |- FE6'9LB'ZZS SEL | (626'F84°C60°'L0L) | (668°L0G'GLE LEE) SSOf PAZifeaiuf) ZF
960'0/9°65F 666G ¥89'2¥5 BG6 619 000 0Et 2166658} | ZEr 256726865 |- 968'920°£66'Z8 | PR9RFC'RI6'6L9 89/°LE5 L6 'GES Haid pezifesy Lt
90g'79L'38ELES SEL'EOL'FLT'BLE (D00'0SY L66'658) | LISBZFLLL'BLE |- D29'cHR'BLG'QZE | SEL'COL PLZ'ELS S16'616'F5.L'B9T Woud panquisipun ‘v
0Z6'€00'095'8 0Z6'500'095'2 < = = % 0Z6'€00'095'8 0Z6'€00'086'8 anasal [Eloueuy
pue ysu [euoneladg ¢
0Z6'00'085'e 0Z6'€00'095'2 = - - - 0Z5°600°095°8 0Z6'c00'095'e anasal Aejuswalddns
[Epded jeueyd Z
C00'8RE'9LE'S 000°ZRZ 4B - 000’2308 '650'G = = 00C'ERE L8 000°Z82°248 winjwaid aieys z'L
G00'0EF L6E'6GEE | 000000000000 | - 000 0EF £66'658°) | - = 090°C0G'C00'00C'E | 00G'060°000'000°E sueys KeUipIC ¢}
ODO'ELE'RIB'SOL'E | 000282 L48°'0002 - 000'9E0°LE0'GEEL - = 00C'Z9E'LLB'000'C | DDO'ZRE L22'000'E [eydes aseys °|
ALIND3A.SYINMO
NI SZONVHD i
anNA ann anA aNA anA anA aniA aniA S0 SWTLI
FZOS 42QW333T LE  EE0Z42quens] [ | asealdag asEa4ouf S5E84I8] asealolf rZ0C \Qm__._tm\. £ £202 B__m__._n__mﬁ i
Jealk Jualnd) Jead sn olnaly
asueieq Bulpus (aseainap)asealy aoueeq Buivado
#Z0Z JagwaaaQ ¢ papus 1eaf ay) 1oy
H213-70d ALIND3 SHINMO NI SFONYHD 40 ININILVYLS

Auedwog 0035 julor saunaag buoyd usi|



Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS B0O9-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

1. CORPORATE INFORMATION

Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company (‘the Company”), farmerly known as Phuong
Dong Securities Joint Stock Company, is a securities company incorporated under Securities
Trading License No. 49/UBCK-GPHPKD issued by the State Securities Commission on 29
December 2006 and Amended Licenses.

The current primary activities of the Company are to provide brokerage services; investment
and financial advisory services; securities custodian service; securities trading; underwriting
for securities issues.

The Company's head office is located at 7th Floor, Doji Building, 81-83-85 Ham Nghi Street,
Nguyen Thai Binh Ward, District 1, Ho Chi Minh City. As at 31 December 2024, the Company
has one (1) branch located in Ha Noi. ;

The number of the Company's employees as on 31 December 2024 is 329 persons (31
December 2023: 321 persons).

Main features of operation of the Company

Capital

According to the statement of financial position as at 31 December 2024, the Company's
charter capital amounts to VND 3,359,997,430,000 while its owners' equity is VND
3,020,423,088,146 and its total assets are VND 11,198,130,697,457.

Investment cbfectives

The Company's aims are to contribute to the development of the securities market and bring
benefits to its customers, investors and shareholders.

Investment restrictions

The Company is required to comply with Article 28, Circular No. 121/2020/TT-BTC dated 31
December 2020 prescribing on operation of securities companies. The current applicable
practices on investment restrictions are as follows:

» Securities company is not allowed to invest, contribute capital to invest in real-estate
investment except for the purpose of use for head office, branches, and transaction offices
directly serving professional business activities of the securities company.

» Securities company may invest in real-estate investment and fixed assets on the principle
that the carrying value of the fixed assets and real-estate investment should not exceed
fity percent (50%) of the total value of assets of the securities company.

» Securities company is not allowed to use more than seventy percent (70%) of its owners'
equity to investin corporate bonds. Securities company, licensed to engage in self-trading
activity, is allowed to trade listed bonds in accordance with relevant provision on trading
Government bonds.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

1.

2.1

CORPORATE INFORMATION (continued)

Main features of operation of the Company (continued)

Investment restrictions (continued)
»  Securities company must not by itself, or autharize another organization or individuals to:

Invest in shares or contribute capital to companies that owned more than fifty percent
(50%) of the charter capital of the securities company, except for purchasing of odd lots
at the request of customers; Make joint investment with an affiliated person of five percent
(5%) or more in the charter capital of another securities company; Invest more than twenty
percent (20%) in the total currently circulaling shares or fund certificates of a listing
organization; Invest more than fifteen percent (15%) in the total currently circulating
shares or fund certificates of an unlisted organization, this provision shall not apply to
member fund, ETF fund or open-end fund certificates; Invest ar contribute capital of more
than ten percent (10%) in the total paid-up capital of a limited liabilitiy company or of a
business project; Invest or contribute more than fifteen percent (15%) of its equity in a
single organization or of a business project; Invest more than seventy percent (70%) of
its total equity in shares, capital contribution and a business project, specifically invest
more than twenty percent (20%) of its total equity in unlisted shares, capital contribution
and a business project.

Securities company is allowed to establish, acguire a fund management company as a
subsidiary. In such case, the securities company is not required to comply with the
following provisions: Invest more than twenty percent (20%) of the total number of
outstanding shares and fund certificates of a listed organization; Invest more than fifteen
percent (15%) of the total number of outstanding shares and fund certificates of an
unlisted organization, this provision does not apply to member fund certificates,
exchange-traded funds and open-ended funds; Invest or contribute more than ten percent
(10%) of the total capital contributed by a limited liability company or a business project.

BASIS OF PREPARATION

Applied accounting standards and system

The financial statements of the Company expressed in Vietnam dong ("VND") are prepared
in accordance with Vietnamese Enterprise Accounting System, the accounting regulation and
guidance applicable to securities companies as set out in Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC
dated 30 December 2014 of the Ministry of finance, Circular No. 334/2016/TT-BTC dated 27
December 2016 of the Ministry of finance amending, supplementing and replacing
Appendices No. 02 and No. 04 of Circular No. 210/2014/TT-BTC and other Vietnamese
Accounting Standards promulgated by the Ministry of Finance as per:

b

Decision No. 149/2001/QD-BTC dated 31 December 2001 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 1);

Decision No. 165/2002/QD-BTC datad 31 December 2002 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 2);

Decision No. 234/2003/QD-BTC dated 30 December 2003 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 3);

Decision No. 12/2005/QD-BTC dated 15 February 2005 on the lIssuance and
Promulgation of Six Vietnamese Standards on Accounting (Series 4); and

Decision No. 100/2005/QD-BTC dated 28 December 2005 on the Issuance and
Promulgation of Four Viethamese Standards on Accounting (Series 5).
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

2.2

2.3

2.4

4.1

4.2

BASIS OF PREPARATION (continued)
Applied accounting documentation system
The Company's applied accounting documentation system is the General Jaurnal system.

Fiscal year

The Company's fiscal year starts on 1 January and ends on 31 December.

Accounting currency

The financial statements are prepared in Vietnam dong ("VND"), which is the accounting
currency of the Company.

STATEMENT ON THE COMPLIANCE WITH VIETNAMESE ACCOUNTING STANDARDS
AND SYSTEMS

Management confirms that the Company has complied with the Vietnamease Accounting
Standards, Viethamese Enterprise Accounting System, accounting guidance applicable to
securities companies and the statutory requirements relevant to the preparation and
presentation of the financial statements.

Accordingly, the accompanying financial statements, including their utilization are not
designed for those who are not informed about Vietnam's accounting principles, procedures
and practices and furthermore are not intended to present the financial position, results of
operations, cashflows and changes in owners' equity in accordance with accounting principles
and practices generally accepted in countries other than Vietnam.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES
Changes in accounting policies and disclosures

The accounting policies of the company used to prepare financial statements are applied
consistently with the policies used to prepare the financial statements for the fiscal year
ending 31 December 2023.

Cash and cash equivalents

Cash and cash equivalents comprise cash on hand, cash at banks and short-term, highly
liquid investments with an original maturity of three (3) months or less that are readily
convertible into known amounts of cash and that are subject to an insignificant risk of change
in value.

Cash deposited by customers for securities trading and cash deposited by securities issuers
are presented on the off-balance sheet.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4.3

4.4

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Financial assets at fair value through profit and foss (FVTPL)

Financial assets recognized at fair value through profit and loss are financial assets that
satisfy either of the following conditions:

a) ltis classified as held for trading. A financial asset is classified as held for trading if:

» Itis acquired or incurred principally for the purpose of selling or repurchasing it in the
near term;

B  There is evidence of a recent actual pattern of short-term profit-taking; or

b It is a derivative (except derivative that is a financial guarantee contract or effective
hedging instrument).

b) Upon initial recognition, a financial asset is designated by the entity as at fair value
through profit and loss as it meets one of the following criteria:

B The designation eliminates or significantly reduces the inconsistent treatment that
would otherwise arise from measuring the asset or recognizing gains or losses on a
different basis; or

» The assets and liabilities are part of a group of financial assets which are managed
and their performance evaluated on a fair value basis, in accordance with a
documented risk management policy or investment strategy.

Financial assets at FVTPL are initially recognized at cost (acquisition cost of the assets
excluding transaction cost arising from the purchase) and subsequently recognized at fair
value,

Increase in the difference arising from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL at fair value in
comparison with the previous year is recognized into the income statement under “Gain from
revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL". Decrease in the difference arising from revaluation
of financial assets at FVTPL at fair value in comparison with the previous year is recognized
into the income statement under “Loss from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL".

Transaction costs relating to the purchase of the financial assets at FVTPL are recognized
when incur as expenses in the income statement.

Held-to-maturity financial investments (HTM)

Held-to-maturity investments are recognized initially at cost (purchase price plus (+)
transaction costs which are directly attributable to the investments such as brokerage fee,
trading fee, agent fee, issuance agent fee and banking transaction fee. After initial recognition,
held-to-maturity financial investments are subsequently measured at amortized cost using the
effective interest rate ("EIR").

Amortized cost of HTM financial investments is the amount at which the financial asset is
measured at initial recognition minus (-) principal repayments, plus (+) or minus (-) the
cumulative amortisation using the effective interest method of any difference between that
initial amount and the maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or

uncollectibility (if any).

The effective interest rate method is a method of calculating the cost allocation on interest
income or interest expense in the year of a financial assets or a group of HTM investments.

The effective interest rate is the rate that exactly discounts estimated future cash payments

or receipts through the expected life of the financial instrument or, when appropriate, a shorter
year to the net carrying amount of the financial asset.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TQ THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4.4

4.5

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Held-to-maturity investments (HTM) (continued)

HTM investments are subject to an assessment of impairment at the financial statement date.
Provision is made for an HTM investment when there is any objective evidence that the
investment is unrecoverable or there is uncertainty of recoverability, resulting from ane or
more events that has occurred after the initial recognition of the investment and that event
has an impact on the estimated future cash flows of the investment that can be reliably
estimated. Evidence of impairment may include a drop in the fair value/market value of the
investment, indications that the debtors or a group of debtors are experiencing significant
financial difficulty, default or delinquency in interest or principal payments, the probability that
they will enter bankruptey or other financial reorganization and where observable data indicate
that there is a measurable decrease in the estimated future cash flows, such as changes in
arrears or economic conditions that correlate with defaults. When there is any evidence of
impairment, provision for an HTM investment is determined as the negative difference
between its fair value and amortized cost at the assessment date. Any increase/decrease in
the balance of provision is recognized in the income statement under "Provision expense for
diminution in value and impairment of financial assets and doubtful receivables, and
borrowing costs of loans".

Loans

Loans are non-derivative financial assets with fixed or identifiable payments and not listed on
the market, with the exceptions of.

a) The amounts the Company intent to immediately sell or will sell in a near future which are
classified as assets held for trading, and like those which, upon initial recognition, the
Company categorized as such recognized at fair value through profit and loss,

b) The amounts categorized hy the Company as available for sale upon initial recognition,
or

¢) The amounts whose holders cannot recover most of the initial investment value not due
to credit quality impairment and which are categorized as available for sale.

Loans are recognized initially at cosi. After initial recognition, loans are subsequently
measured at amortized cost using the effective interest rate ("EIR").

Amortized cost of loans is the amount at which the financial asset is measured at initial
recognition minus (=) principal repayments, plus (+) or minus (-) the cumulative amortization
using the effective interest method of any difference between that initial amount and the
maturity amount, and minus any reduction for impairment or uncollectibility (if any).

Loans are subject to an assessment of impairment at the financial statement date. Provision
is made for loan based on its estimated loss which is determined by the negative difference
between the market value of securities used as collaterals for such loan and the loan balance.
Any increase/decrease in the balance of provision is recognized in the income statement
under “Provision expense for diminution in value and impairment of financial assels and
doubtful debts and borrowing casts of loans”.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B0O9-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4.6

4.7

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Fair value/market value of financial assets

Fair value/market value of the securities is determined as follows:

I For securities listed on Hanoi Stock Exchange and Ho Chi Minh City Stock Exchange,
their market prices are their closing prices on the trading day preceding the date of setting
up the provision.

B For unlisted securities registered for trading on the Unlisted Public Company Market
("UPCom™), their market prices are their closing prices on the trading day preceding the
date of setting up the provision.

» For the delisted securities and suspended trading securities from the sixth day afterward,
their prices are the book value at the latest financial report date.

B The market price for unlisted securities and securities unregistered for trading on UPComn
used as a basis for setting up the provision is the average of actual trading prices quoted
by three (03) securities companies conducting transactions at the latest date preceding
the revaluation date.

»  For unlisted bands, their market prices is the maximum value of the following values: The
quoted price (if any) announced on quotation systems selected by the securities-trading
organization, plus accrued interest, the purchase price, plus accrued interest; the par
value, plus accrued interest; the price determined according to internal regulations of the
Company, including accrued interest.

B For securities which do not have reference price from the above sources, the impairment
is determined based on the financial performance and the book value of securities issuers
as at the assessment date.

For the purpose of determining CIT taxable profit, the tax bases for financial assets are
determined by cost minus (-) provision for diminution in value. Accordingly, market value of
securities for provision purpose is determined in accordance with the Circular No.48/2018/TT-
BTC (“Circular 48") dated 8th August 2019 by the Ministry of Finance.

Derecognition of financial assets

A financial asset (or, where applicable a part of a financial asset or part of a group of similar s
financial assels) is derecoghized when;

= The rights to receive cash flows from the asset have expired; or

» The Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from the asset or has
assumed an obligation to pay the received cash flows in full without material delay to a
third party under a "pass-through” arrangement; and either:

- The Company has substantially transferred all the risks and rewards of the asset, or

- The Company has substantially neither transferred nor retained all the risks and
rewards of the asset but has transferred control of the asset.

When the Company has transferred its rights to receive cash flows from an asset or has
entered into a pass-through arrangement and has neither transferred nor retained
substantially all the risks and rewards of the asset nor transferred control of the asset, the
asset is recognized to the extent of the Company's continuing involvement in the asset. In
that case, the Company also recognizes an associated liability. The transferred asset and the
associated liability are measured on a basis that reflects the rights and obligations that the
Company has retained.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4, SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

4.7 Derecognition of financial assets (continued)

The continued participant in transferred assets in the form of guarantee will be recognized at
lower value between the initial carrying value of the assets and the maximum amount that the
Company is required to pay.

4.8 Reclassification of financial assets

Reclassification when selling financial assets other than FVTPL

When selling financial assets other than FVTPL, securities companies are required to

reclassify those financial assets to financial assets at FVTPL. The difference arising from the 3
revaluation of financial assets AFS which recognized in “Gainfloss) from revaluation of %
financial assets AFS” will be recognized as corresponding revenue or expenses at the date ?'I
of reclassification of financial assets AFS for selling purpose. *

Reclassification due to change in purpose or ability to hold %75

Securities companies are required to reclassify financial assets to their applicable categories
if their purpose or ability to hold has changed, consequently:

» Non-derivative financial assets at FVTPL or financial assets that are not required to
classify as financial asset at FVTPL at the initial recognition can be classified as loans
and other receivables or as cash and cash equivalents if the requirements are met. The
gains or losses arising from revaluation of financial assets at FVTPL prior to the
reclassification are not allowed to be reversed.

» Due to changes in purposes or ability to hold, some HTM investments are required to be
reclassified into AFS financial assets and to be reassessed at fair value. The difference
arising from revaluation between carrying value and fair value are recognized under
Equity (other comprehensive income), through recognition in the Statement of Changes
in Owners' Equity and the Income Statement under “Gain/(losses) from revaluation of
AFS" within "Other Comprehensive Income/(Loss)" after Gorporate Income Tax.

4.9 Receivables
Receivables are initially recorded at cost and subsequently always presented at cost.

Receivables are subject to review for impairment based on their overdue status or estimated
loss arising from undue debts of corporate debtors who have bankruptcy or are under
liquidation; or of individual debtors who are missing, have fled, are prosecuted, detained or
tried by law enforcement bodies, are serving sentences or are currently suffering from a fatal
disease (certified by the hospital) or dead or the debt has been sued for debt collection by the
enterprise but the case has been suspended. Increases or decreases 10 the provision balance
are recorded as 'Provision expenses for diminution in value and impairment of financial
assets, doubtful debts and borrowing costs of loans” in the income staterment.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4.9

4.10

4.11

412

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Receivables (continued)

The Company has made provision for doubtful receivables in accordance with Circular No.
48/2019/TT-BTC dated 8 August 2019 issued by the Ministry of Finance. Accordingly, the
provision rates for overdue receivables are as follows:

Qverdue year Provision rate
From over six (6) months to less than cne (1) year 30%
From one (1) year to less than two (2) years 50%
From two (2) years to less than three (3) years 70%
From three (3) years and above 100%

Tangible fixed assets
Tangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.

The cost of a tangible fixed asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly attributable
costs of bringing the tangible fixed asset to working condition for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of
the assets and expenditures for maintenance and repairs are charged to the income
statement as incurred.

When tangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
(the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amount) is included in the
statement.

Intangible fixed assets
Intangible fixed assets are stated at cost less accumulated amortization.

The cost of an intangible fixed asset comprises of its purchase price and any directly
attributable costs of preparing the intangible fixed asset for its intended use.

Expenditures for additions, improvements and renewals are added to the carrying amount of
the assels and other expenditures are charged to the income statement as incurred.

When intangible fixed assets are sold or retired, any gain or loss resulting from their disposal
(the difference between the net disposal proceeds and the carrying amaount) is included in the

income statement.
Depreciation and amotrtization

Depreciation and amortization of tangible fixed assets and intangible fixed assets are
calculated on a straight-line basis over the estimated useful life of each asset as follows:

Machine and equipment 1-5years
Means of transportation 6 - 10 years
Office equipment 1- 5 years
IT software 1-7years
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BO9-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

413

4.14

4.16

4.16

4.17

4.18

4.18.1

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Operating leases

Whether an agreement is determined as a property lease agreement depends on the nature
of the agreement at the beginning: whether the implementation of the agreement depends on
the use of a certain asset and whether the agreement includes clauses on the use rights of
the asset.

Rentals respective to operating leases are charged to the income statement on a straight-line
basis over the term of the lease.

Prepaid expenses

Prepaid expenses, including short-term prepaid expenses and long-term prepaid expenses in
the statement of financial position, are amortized over the year for which the amounts are paid
or the year in which economic benefits are generated in relation to these expenses.

The following types of expenses are recorded as short-term and long-term prepaid expenses
and are amortized over the year from one (1) year to three (3) years to the income statement:

» Office renovation expenses,

p  Office tools and consumables;
B Office rental expenses; and
=

Other prepaid expenses.

Borrowings

Loans and borrowings issued by the Company are recorded and stated at cost of the balance
at the end of the accounting year.

Payable for securities trading activities

Payables for securities trading activities reflect the deposit the Company receives from
investors to carry out securities trading transactions with the Stock Exchange.

Payables for securities trading activities also include fees for trading activities and securities
services to the Stock Exchange, the Vietnam Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation
and other payables.

Payables and accrued expehses

Payables and accrued expenses are recognized for amounts to be paid in the future for goods
and services received, whether or not billed to the Company.

Employee benefits

Post-emplayment benefils

Post-employment benefits are paid to retired employees of the Campany by the Social
Insurance Agency, which belongs to the Ministry of Labor, Invalids and Social Affairs. The
Company is required to contribute to these post-employment benefits by paying social
insurance premium to the Social Insurance Agency at the rate of 17.5% of an employee's
basic salary on a monthly basis. Besides, The Company has no further obligation.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and far the year ended

4.
4.18

4.18.2

4.18.3

4.19

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)

Employee benaefits (continued)

Severance allowarnice

According to current regulations, the company is obligated to pay a severance allowance
equivalent to half a month's salary for each year of service up to 31 December 2008, along
with any other applicable allowances, to employees who voluntarily resign after working
continuously for at least 12 months. The average monthly salary used to calculate the
severance payment will be based on the average salary of the six months preceding the
employee's resignation.

Unemployment allowance

According to prevailing regulations, the Company is required to contribute to the
unemployment insurance at the rate of 1% of salary and wage fund of unemployment
insurance joiners and deduct 1% of monthly salary and wage of each employee to contribute
to the unemployment insurance.

Revenue recognition

Revenue is recognized to the extent that it is probable that the economic benefits will flow to
the Company and the revenue can be reliably measured. Revenue is measured at the fair
value of receipts or receivables |ess trade discount, concessions and sales return. The
following specific recognition criteria must also be met before revenue is recognized:

Revenue from brokerage services

Where the contract autcome can be reliably measured, revenue is recognized by reference
to the stage of completion. Where the contract outcome cannot be reliably measured, revenue
is recognized only to the extent of the expenses recognized which are recoverable.

Ravenue from seclrities investment, capital contribution

Revenue from securities investment and capital contribution includes the difference in profit
from selling proprietary securities of the Company (recognized based on the Notice of results
of clearing and settlement of securities transactions of the Vietnam Securities Cepository and
Clearing Corporation) and dividends are recognized in the income statement on an accrual
basis, with the exception of dividends which are updated and tracked only on the number of
shares held without recognized as revenue.

Revenue from advisory and securities depository activities

Revenue from securities advisory and depository activities is recognized in the income
statement in the year when the services are rendered and the cost to complete the transaction
providing that service.

Inferest income

Revenue is recognized on accrual basis (taking into account the effective yield on the assetf)
unless collectability is in doubt.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4.19

4.20

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Revenue recognition (continued)

Other reventies from rendering Services

Where the contract outcome can be reliably measured, revenue is recognized by reference
to the stage of completion.

Where the contract outcome cannat be reliably measured, revenue is recognized only to the
extent of the expenses recognized which are recoverable.

Other income

Revenues from irregular activities other than turnover-generating activities are recorded to
other incomes as stipulated by VAS 14 - Revenue and other income, including: Revenues
from disposals of fixed assets; fines paid by customers for their contract breaches; collected
insurance compensation; collected debt which had been written off and included in the
preceding year expenses; payable debts which are now recorded as revenue increase as
their owners no longer exist; callected tax amounts which now are reduced and reimbursed,

and other revenues.
Operating expenses

Losses and transaction costs for the purchase of financial assets

Loss and transaction costs for the purchase of financial assets reflect losses from the disposal
of financial assets FVTPL, transaction costs for the purchase of financial assets FVTPL,
provision for financial assets, borrowing costs, losses from loans and receivables and losses
on assets in the portfolio Financial assets of the Securities Company, including: financial
assets FVTPL, investments HTM, loans and receivables.

Borrowing cost

Borrowing costs consist of interest and other costs that the Company incurs in connection
with the borrowing of funds. Borrowing costs are recorded as expense during the year

Propristary operating expenses
Proprietary operating expenses reflect the cperating expenses of the securities company

incurred when conducting the securities trading services for itself with the securities
company's own capital.

The Company applies the moving average method to calculate the cost of proprietary
securities and the naminal method to calculate the cost of bonds.

Service-providing opearating expenses

Service-providing operating expenses reflect the direct service-providing costs of the
securities campany, including: securities brokerage costs, underwriting costs, and securities
issuance agents, advisory costs, auction operation costs, entrustment, securities custody
costs and other expenses.

Administration expenses of the securities company

Administration expenses of the securities company are used to reflect the general
administrative expenses of the securities company, including: salary expenses and related
expenses of the management staff, office materials expenses, tools and eguipment,
depreciation of fixed assets, external services and other monetary expenses used for
management aclivities.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4,

4.21

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Corporate income tax

Current income tax

Current income tax assets and liabilities for the current year and for the last year are measured
at the amount expected to be recovered from or paid to the taxation authorities. The tax rates
and tax laws used to compute the amount are those that are enacted as at the report date.

Current income tax is charged or credited to the income statement, except when It relates to
items recognized directly to equity, in which case the current income tax is also dealt with in

equity.

Current income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally enforceable right
for the Company to set off current tax assets against current tax liabilities and when the
Company intends to settle its current tax assets and liabilities on a net basis.

Deferred income tax

Deferred income tax is provided using the liability method on terporary differences at the
balance sheet date between the tax base of assets and liabilities and their carrying amount
for financial reporting purposes.

Deferred tax liabilities are recognized for all taxable temporary differences, except where the
deferred tax liability arises from the initial recognition of an asset or liability in a transaction
which at the time of the transaction affects neither the accounting profit nor taxable profit (or
loss).

Deferred tax assets are recognized for all deductible temporary differences, carry forward of
unused tax credits and unused tax losses, to the extent that it is probable that taxable profits
will be available against which deductible temporary differences, carry forward of unused tax
credits and unused tax losses can be utilized, except where the deferred tax asset in respect
of deductible temporary difference which arises from the initial recognition of an asset or
liability which at the time of the related transaction, affects neither the accounting profit nor
taxable profit (or loss).

The carrying amount of deferred income tax assets is reviewed at each balance sheet date
and reduced to the extent that it is no longer probable that sufficient taxable profits will be
available to allow all or part of the asset to be recovered. Previously unrecognized deferred
income tax assets are re-assessed at each balance sheet date and are recognized to the
extent that it has become probable that future taxable profit will allow the deferred tax assets
to be recovered.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are measured at the tax rates that are expected to
apply in the year when the asset realized, or the liability is settled based on tax rates and tax
laws that have been enacted at the balance sheet date. Deferred tax is charged or credited to
the income statement, except when it relates to itemns recognized directly to equity, in which
case the deferred tax is also dealt with in equity. Deferred tax assets and liabilities are offset
when there is a legally enforceable right for the Company to off-set current tax assets against
current tax liabilities and when they relate to income taxes levied by the same taxation
authority on either the same taxable entity; or when the Company intends either settle current
tax liabilities and assets on a net basis or to realize the assets and setile the liabilities
simultaneously, in each future year in which significant amounts of deferred tax liabilities or
assets are expected to be settled or recovered.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

4,

4.22

4.23

4.24

4.25

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (continued)
Owners’ equity

Conlributed capital from shareholders
Contributed capital from stock issuance is recorded in charter capital at par value.

Undistributed profit
Undistributed profit comprises of realized and unrealized undistributed profit.

Unrealized profit of the year is the difference between gain and loss arisen from revaluation of
FVTPL financial assets or other financial assets through profit and loss in the income
statement.

Realized profit during the year is the net difference between total revenue and income, and
total expenses in the income statement of the Company, except for gain or loss arisen from
revaluation of financial assets recognized in unrealized profit.

Reserves

Reserves are created using profit after tax in accordance with the Resolution of the General
Meeting of Shareholders

Appropriation of net profits

Basic earnings per share is calculated by allocating profits or losses to shareholders owning
odinary shares of the Company after appropriating bonus and welfare funds for the weighted
average number of outsanding ordinary shares for the year..

Diluted earnings per share is determined by adjusting the profit or loss amortized to
shareholders owning ordinary shares of the Company (after appropriating the bonus and
welfare fund) and the weighted average number of ordinary shares outstanding for the effect
of dilutive potential ordinary shares to calculate dilutive earnings per share..

Related parties

Parties are considered to be related parties of the Company if one party has the ability to
contral the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions, or when the Company and other party are under common control or
under common significant influence. Related parties can be enterprise or individual, including
close members of the family of any such individual.

Nil balances

ltems or balances presented on the financial statement, Circular 210/2014/TT-BTC dated 30
December 2014, Circular 334/2016/TT-BTC dated 27 December 2016 issued by the Ministry
of Finance that are not shown in these financial staternents indicate nil balance.

29



Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

5. CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS

Ending balance Beginning balance

VND VND
Cash on hand 762,946 925,608
Cash at banks for operation of the
Company 533,854,347 ,581 1,131,317,512,788
533,855,110,527 1,131,318,438,397
6. VALUE AND VOLUME OF TRADING IN THE YEAR
Volume of trading Value of trading
in the year in the year
(Unit) (VD)
a. The Company 995,699,313 108,713,995,084,978
- Shares 18,334,402 634,061,751,300
- Bonds 977,364,911 108,079,933,333,678
b. Investors 2,364,341,137  71,928,796,807,470
- Shares 2,036,674,552  41,523,269,668,680
- Bonds 269,320,000 30,380,889,490,000
- Others 58,346,586 44,637,648,790
3,360,040,450 180,642,791,892,448
7. FINANCIAL ASSETS

7.1 Financial assets at fair value through profit and loss ("FVTPL")

Ending balance Beginning halance

Cost Fair value Cost Fair value

o VND VND VND
Listed
shares 547,116,642,303 478,064,567,360 522,440,741,242 399,388,446,260
Unlisted
shares 5,800,000,000 - 5,900,000,000 5,900,000,000
Listed
bonds 1,294,026,043, 119 1,204 416,943,119 0 362,518,784 9,180,418,409
Unlisted
bonds 788,927 742,236 788 027.742,236 1,024,562,305,789 1,024,562,305,789

Cerlificates
of deposit 1,210,518,897,700 1,210,519,897,700 640,026,164,000 640,026,164,000

3,846,491,225,358 3,771,929,150,415 2,202,291,729,825 2,079,067,334,458
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

8. RECEIVABLES

Receivables from disposal
of financial assets

Receivables and accruals from dividends
and interest income from financial assets
- Accruals for undue dividend

and interest income

Advances to suppliers

Receivables from services provided hy

the Company

- Receivables from custadian services

- Receivables from consulting services

- Receivables from brokerage services

- Receivables from Bonds services
Hung Thinh Quy MNhon
entertainment.,JSC
Hung Thinh Land investment.,JSC
Helios Service and Invastment,JSC
BCG Land.,JSC
Tracodi Construction Holdings.,JSC
Gia Khang Trading &  Service
Development Investment.,JSC
Others

- Dther receivables:
HBC Investment and Services Joint
Stock Company
LUX Investment Corporation
Kim Hoang Trading Investment and
Construction.,JSC
Gig Dinh Star Investment.,J5C
Orchid Service and Investment JSC
Others

Statutory obligations

service

Other receivables

Ending balance
YIND

Baginning balance
VIND

321,363,578,019

38,211,351,531

38,211,351,531
10,231,193,845

1,290,406,118,088
1,859,839,880
10,339,343,100
141,763,844
274,2687,751,154

123,681,046,578
97,899,662,469
16,364,383,562
5,182,606,849
4,04 5,000,000

2,433,863,013
24,661,288,683
1,003,797,320,000

250,000,000,000
150,883,320,000

110,451,000,000
103,200,000,000

89,773,000,000
299,490,000,000

30,563,907,633
(832,540,170)

160,466,121,600

6,010,421,161

6,010,421,161
3,020,732,000
2,045,429,638,514
162,713,522,024

6,583,851,600
400,050,426

1,875,732,214,464

75,700,000,000

193,778,565,000
1,606,253,649,464

1,378,880,417
5,140,157,436

Provision for impairment of receivables

_ 1,689,943,608,946 _ 2,221,446,021,128
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BO9-CTCK

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

9. PREPAID EXPENSES

Ending balance Beginning balance

VIND VND

Short-term prepaid expenses 4,056,647,644 2,819,616,233

- Software repair and maintenance 1,5626,350,723 866,856,681

- Cffice renlal 623,392,000 -

- Transmission line rental expenses 181,784,163 38,720,000

- Tools and equipment expenses 82,554,652 406,982,125

- Office renovation expenses 59,636,721 103,266,900

- Property insurance expenses 57,813,747 80,022,838

- Other expenses

Long-term prepaid expenses

- Office toals and equipment 523,573,740 29,741,040
- Office renovation expenses 514,858,258 1,815,951,450
- Transmission line rental expenses 11,880,000 12,770,192
- Other expenses 163,231 1023_ 69,709,456

5,270,190,665 4,747,783_,371_
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1,625,216,638
1,213,543,021

1,323,767,489
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

11. INTANGIBLE FIXED ASSETS

Cost

31 December 2023
Increase in the year

31 December 2024

Accumulated amortization

31 December 2023
Amortization during the year

31 December 2024

Net hook value
31 December 2023
31 Decaember 2024

B09-CTCK

Computer software
VND

34,957 421,564
2,690,630,000

37,648,051 664

(26,161,055,403)
(2,952,257,613)

(29,113,313,016)

8,796,366,161
8,534,738.548

Cost of intangible fixed assets which have been fully amartized but are still in use at 31

December 2024 amounted to VND 23,019,801,564 (31

21,850,301,564).

12, CONSTRUCTION IN PROGRESS

December 2023: VND

Ending balance Beginning balance

VND VND

Upgrade stock core S'}‘Stem B 6,21 6.1 29,809 1,487,279,809

13. DEPOSITS, COLLATERALS AND PLEDGES

Ending balance Beginning balance

VND VND

Short-term 129,000,000 60,832,080
Vehicle 50,000,000 -
Service 49,000,000 30,832,080
Photacopy machine rental 25,000,000 25,000,000
Warghouse rental 5,000,000 5,000,000

Long-term
Office rental
Car rental

Taxi services

39

3,345,691,305
3,232,691,305
105,000,000
8,000,000

3,474,691,305

3,285,596,089
3.149,596,089
128,000,000
8,000,000

3,346,428,169




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

14.

15.

DEFERRED TAX ASSETS
Ending balance  Beginning halance
VD VND
Deferred tax related to revaluation of financial
assets FVTPL 12,487,161,153 22,219,625,238
Deferred tax related payable of revenue from
securities custodian services - (689,014,800)
12,487,161,153 21,530,610,438

DEPOSITS TO SETTLEMENT ASSISTANCE FUND

Deposits to settlement assistance fund represent amounts deposited to Vietnam Securities
Depository and Clearing Corporation.

According to prevailing regulation of Vietham Securities Depository and Clearing Corporation,
the Company must deposit an initial amount of VND120 million at the Vietnam Securities
Depository and pay an addition of 0.01% of the total amount of brokered securities in the
previous year (excluding privately issued corporate bonds), but not over VND2.5 billion per
annum. The maximum contribution of each custody to the Settlement Assistance Fund is
VND20 billion for custody members who are the Company with trading securities and
brokerage activities.

Movements of the funds during the year are as follows:

Current year Previous year

VND VND

Initial payment 120,000,000 120,000,000
Additional payment 9,899,867,033 7,234619.511
Payment according to sales 2,500,000,000 2,500,000,000
Interest distribution (461,905,881) (296,658,359)
12,067,961,152 9,557,961,152
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

18.

19.

20.

PAYABLES FOR SECURITIES TRADING ACTIVITIES

B09-CTCK

The balance as at 31 December 2024 reflects securities trading fees payable to stock exchange.

STATUTORY OBLIGATIONS

Payables during Paymenl

Beginning balance the year during the year  Ending balance
fterms VIND VD VIND VND
Corporate
income tax 14,451,506,328 93,294,963,687 (88,722,153,667) 19,024,316,348
Value
added tax (1,378,880,417) 52.859,061,620 (49,422,024,007) 2,058,157 196
Personal
income tax
on hehalf of
investors 19,088,898,791 174,304,004,149 (169,423,149,115) 23,968,753,825
Personal
income tax 3,636,126,580 31,682,858,620 (31,925621,852) 3,193,363,358
Foreign
Contractor
Tax - 3,136,074,383 (3,135,302,915) 771,468
License tax - 4,000,000 {4,000,000) =

35,697,651,292  355,180,962,459 (342,632,2561,556) 48,246,362,195
In which:
Receivables
from the

State Budgst
Taxes
payable to
the State
Budgef

(1,378,880,417)

37,076,531,709

SHORT-TERM ACCRUED EXPENSES

Ending balance

48,246,362, 195

Beginning balance

Professional fees, brokerage commissions
Expenses payable to employees
Interests on bonds expenses
External service expenses
Interest expenses

Brokerage fee and custody fee

VIND VND
60,388,880,786 48,192,676,650
50,333,549,878 15,181,390,788
47,205,803,606 20,586,630,998

9,936,147,196
2,857,671,220
2,608,313,011

6,406,325,207
764,356,643
2,090,850,193

173,330,375,697

93,222,230,480
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

21,

22,

SHORT-TERM UNEARNED REVENUES

Shareholder management service

Depositary and bond management services.
Hung Thinh Quy Nhon Entertainment
Service Joint Slock Company
Thanh Nguysn Energy Investment and
Development Limited Liability Company
Helios Investment and Service Joint Stock
Company
Hung Thinh Land Joint Stock Company
Others

OTHER SHORT-TERM PAYABLES

Payable for bond purchases
On behalf of cash paid to bond fee for issuers

Others

44

Ending balance
VND

BO9-CTCK

Beginning balance
VND

37,500,000
40,312,118,763

11,479,452,070
8,381,670,425
6,739,726,026

5,408,219,188
8,303,051,054

16,666,668
12.155,182,776

9,456,736,035

2,698,446,741

40,349,618,763

12,171,849,444

Ending balance
VND

Beginning balance
VND

56,699,594,594
12,351,782, 453
1,857,344,092

57,552 660,867
4,008,014 544

70,908,721,139

61 .560._575,511
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended
23. OWNER’S EQUITY (continued)
23.2 Owner's equity (continued)
Details of the number of shares of the Company are as follows:
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Unit Unit
Number of shares allowed to issue 335,999,743 200,000,000
Crdinary share 335,999,743 200,000,000
Number of shares issued and paid 335,999,743 200,000,000
Ordinary share 335,999,743 200,000,000
Number of cutstanding shares 335,999,743 200,000,000
Ordinary share 335,999,743 200,000,000

23.3

According to the Resolution of the Board of Directors 01/2023/NQ-DHDCDTN dated 19 April
2023, and Document No. 1914/UBCK-QLKD dated 19 April 2024, from the State Securities
Commission (SSC), the Company has issued shares {o increase its charter capital. The
Company successfully distributed 100,000,000 shares, raising the total number of shares in
circulation to 300,000,000 shares. According to the adjusted license No. 24/GPDC-UBCK
dated 19 April 2024, the State Securities Commission approved the change of charter capital
from 2,000,000,000,000 VND ta 3,000,000,000,000 VND from the share issuance.

Accarding to the Resolution of the Board of Directors No. 11/2024/NQ-HDQT and Notification
No. 221/2024/TPS-TB dated 4 June 2024, the Company has issued shares to pay dividends
for the year 2023 with an exercise ratio of 100:12 from undistributed after-tax profits based on
the audited Financial Report 2023. The result of the issuance, according to Report No.
262/2024/TPS-CV dated 20 June 2024, the Company successfully distributed 35,999,743
shares, raising the total number of shares in circulation to 335,999,743 shares. According to
the adjusted license No. 65/GPDC-UBCK dated 26 August 2024, the State Securities
Commission approved the change of charter capital from 3,000,000,000,000 VND to
3,359,997,430,000 VND from the share issuance.

Earnings per share

Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the after-tax profit or loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company's ordinary shares by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year.

Diluted earnings per share is calculated by dividing the after-tax profit or loss attributable to
shareholders of the Company's ordinary shares by the weighted average number of ordinary
shares outstanding during the year and the weighted average number of ordinary shares to
be issued in the event of all dilutive potential ordinary shares are converted into common
shares.

The Company uses the following information to calculate basic and diluted earnings per share:
Previous year

Current year VND
VND (Restatad)

Profit after tax attributable to ordinary

equity holders for basic earnings (VND) 379,111,428,571

228,519,843,820

Weighted average number of outstanding
ordinary shares calculation of basic earnings

per share (share) 333,938,471 224,000,000
Basic earnings per share (VND/share) 1,135 1,020
Diluted profit per share (VND/Share) 1,135 1,020
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BOS-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

23.

23.3

24,
24.1

24.2
24.2.1

24.2.2

24.3

OWNER’S EQUITY (continued)
Earnings per share (continued)
The weighted average number of outstanding common shares for the fiscal year ending 31
December 2024, has been adjusted in proportion to the increase in the number of outstanding

common shares due to the issuance of bonus shares and the payment of dividends in shares,
assuming that these events occurred at the beginning of the previous year.

DISCLOSURE OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS

Doubtful debts handled

Ending balance Beginning balance

VND VND

Other doubtful receivables - Huyen Nhu case 344,818,060,028 364,277,336,109
Receivables from individuals under payment
support contracts 37,510,208,284 37,6510,206,284
Recejvables and accruals of dividends and
interest paid off 488,049,164 488,049,164
Other doubtful receivables 41,529,999 41,529,999

382,857,845,475 402,317,121,656

Financial assets listed/registered for trading at VSDC of the Company

Unrestricted and traded financial assets

Par value
Ending balance Beginning balance
o VND VND
HINX 1,891,930,000,000  1,006,733,400,000
HOSE 159,587,130,000 143,452,430,000
UPCQOM 6,310,000 566,310,000

2,051,523,440,000 _ 1,150,752,140,000

Financial assets awaiting for seitlement of the Company
_ Par value _
Ending balance  Beginning balance
VND VND
Bonds 320,000,000,000 -
Shares A 1.247,580,000
320,000,000,000 1,247,580,000
Financial assets awaiting arrival of the Company
Par value
Ending balance  Beginning halance
B VND ~ VND
Bonds 470,000,000,000 -
Shares - 537,000,000
470,000,000,000 537,000,000
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

24,

24.4

24.5

24.6

24.7

B09-CTCK

DISCLOSURE OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (continued)

Financial assets which have not been deposited at VSDC of the Company

Par value

Ending balance

Beginning balance

VIND VIND

Shares
Bonds
Certificates of deposit

§,800,000,000
5,207,000,000
1,210,519,897,700

5,500,000,000
18,023,300,000
640,026,164,000

1,221,626,897,700

663,949,464,000

{nvestors’ financial assets listed/registered at VSDC

Ending balance Beginning bafance
Par value Par value
Quantity VND Quantity VIND
Unrestricted
and traded
financial assets 801,785,526 26,318,302,243,400 406,761,137 4,949,315,210,800
Blocked
financial
assets 267,573,009 8,185,148,850,000 120,330,132 1,293,301,320,000
Financial
assels
awaiting
settlement 2,359,177 23,510,540,000 11,554,645 110,751,770,000

1,171,717,712  34,526,961,633,400

637,645,914 6,353,368,300,800

Investors’ financial assets awaiting arrival

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Par value Par value
Quanlily VIND Quantity VND
Financial
assets awaiting
arrival of
investors 8,879,016 87,193,550,000 19,614,978 193,71 5,405,000

Entitled financial assets of investors

Ending balance

Beginning balance

Par vaiu_e Par value
Quantity VND Quantity VND
Entitled financial
assets of
investors 419,925 4,19%,247,500 395,425 8,115,237,500
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

24, DISCLOSURE OF OFF-BALANCE SHEET ITEMS (continued)

24.8 Investors' deposits

Ending balance  Beginning balance

VND VND
Investors' deposits for securities trading
activities managed by the Company
Domestic investors' depaosits for securifies
trading activities managed by the Company 624,988,692,237 1,040,451,266,799
Foreign investors’ deposits for sectritias
trading activities managed by the Company 6,813,277,110 1,868,314,804

_ 631,801,969,347 1,042,41 9,681,603

24.9 Payables to investors — investors’ deposits for securities trading activities managed

by the Company

Ending balance  Beginning balance

VIND VIND

Payables to investors - Investors' deposits for
securities trading activities managed by the
Company
- Domestic investors 624,988,692,237 1,040,451,266,799
- Foreign investors o _6_.873,277,110 1,968,314,804

631 ,801,969,347 1,042,419,581,603

24.10 Dividend, bond principal and interest payables

Ending balance  Beginning balance
VND VD

Dividend, bond principal and interest payables 13,577,523,412 _ 58,778,401,926
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Tien Phong Securities Jaint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

25,

25.3

26.

27.

28.

GAIN/(LOSS) FROM FINANCIAL ASSETS (continued)

BO9-CTCK

Dividend, interest income from financial assets at FVTPL, loans and receivahles

Interest income from loans and receivables
Dividend, interest from financial assets at
FVTPL

Interest from HTM financial assets

INCOME FROM OTHER ACTIVITIES

Income from hond service aclivities
Income from investment cooperation activities
Other income

Current year
VND

Previous year
VND

196,240,571,739

170,634,574,849
42,066,014,643

110,776,616,161

692,367,038,341
4,289,178,082

408,941,161,231

807,432,832,584

Current year
VND

Pravious year
VND

522,992,091,636
270,401,453,094
400,166,668

232,558,418,745
1,378,004,565

793,793,711,398

233,937,423,510

EXPENSES FOR PROPRIETARY TRADING ACTIVITIES

Salary expense and other related expenses
Office rentals
Other expenses

EXPENSES FOR BROKERAGE SERVICES

Salary expense and other related expenses
Transaction fee for brokerage activities
Caommission expenses

Office rentals

Software deferred expenses

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Other expenses

53

Current year
VIND

1,160,282,300
90,426,344
499,615,078

Previous year
VIND

1,715,921,231
80,392,659
641,103,913

1,750,323,723

2,437,417,803

Current year
VND

Previous year
VD

27,742,863,387
13,717,136,717
11,798,036,644
2,133,158,076
2,083,128,448
897,803,594
8,353,672,111

19,883,775,534
8,725,497,956
5,343,568,443
2,398,719,433
3,427,127,410
2,406,373,562
9,753,679,630

66,725,798,977

51,938,741,968




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

29. EXPENSES FOR SECURITIES CUSTODIAN SERVICES

Current year
VND

B09-CTCK

Previous year
VIND

Custody expenses
Brokerage fee and partner commission

Other expenses

6,202,388,811

657,156,957

5,676,288,285
495,329,389,331
3,980,293,985

6,859,545,768

504,895,971,601

30. EXPENSES FOR FINANCIAL ADVISORY SERVICES

Salary expense and other related expenses
Commission expenses

Office rentals

Qther expenses

Current year
VND

Previous year
VND

23,333,084,237
3,137,050,002
2,231,236,554
8,712,342,045

37,017,928,010
28,783,675,488

2,365,876,517
28,849,072,510

37,413,712,828

97,016,552,525

31. FINANCE INCOME

Current year
VIND

Interest income e

5,370,319,392

Previous year
VND

5,437,988,700

32. FINANCE EXPENSES3

Current year
VND

Previous year
VND

Bond interest expenses
Loan interest expenses

Other finance expenses

293,698,630,135
214,653,674,552
9,468,550,462

300,667,288,607
118,672,164,234
51,836,106,292

517,820,855,149

_463,075,559.133
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

33.

34.

35.

GENERAL AND ADMINISTRATIVE EXPENSES

Salary expense and other related expenses
External service expenses

Saocial insurance, health insurance,
unemployment insurance and union fee
Office rental

Depreciation and amortization expenses
Auditing, consulting, software insurance
expenses

Office supplies expenses

Taxes and fees

Other expenses

OTHER INCOME

Revenue from recovered debts processed in
the Huyen Nhu case

Compensation, contract penalty

Income of disposal of tools and equipment

Other income

OTHER EXPENSES

Administrative violations expenses
Other expenses

55

Current year
VND

88,153,567,695
8,014,605,870

6,258,890,900
5,319,713,734
2,257,846,377

1,839,0569,350
271,952,148
37,137,500
22,901,994,538

B09-CTCK

Previous year
VND

68,708,803,376
10,808,606,325

5,726,280,000
6,223,312,628
3,668,682,018

4,600,070,122
510,686,697
3,398,763
32,969,996,773

135,054,768,113

133,119,736,602

Current year
VND

Previous year
VND

19,458,278,081
3,588,748,831
6,646,455
7,211,000

5,523,160,755
85,538,902,802
218,292,000
482,320,021

23,061,781,467

91,762,675,578

Current year Previous ysar
VND VND
3,500,000 -
327,583,058 8,769,192
331 .093,05& 8,769,192




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)

B09-CTCK

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

36.

36.1

36.2

CORPORATE INCOME TAX

The Company has the obligations to pay the Corporate Income Tax (“CIT") at a rate of 20%
of taxable profits (previous year: 20%).

The tax returns filed by the Company are subject to examination by the tax authorities. As the
application of tax laws and regulations is susceptible to varying interpretations, the amounts
reported in the financial statements could change later upon final determination by the tax
authorities.

Corporate income tax expernse
The total corporate income tax in this year is represented in the table below:

Current year Previous year
VIND VIND

03,294 963,687
9,043 449,285

102,338,412,972

21,233,858,960
33,604,742,564

54,928,601,524

Current CIT expense
Deferred CIT expense

Current CIT expense

The current tax payable is based on taxable profit for the current year. The taxable profit of
the Company for the year differs from the profit as reported in the statement income because
it excludes items of income or expense that are taxable or deductible in other years and it
further excludes items that are not taxable or deductible. The Company's liability for current
tax is calculated using tax rates that have been enacted by the reporting date.

Reconciliation between CIT expense and accounting profit multiplied by CIT rate is presented
below:

Profit before tax
At CIT rate of 20% applicable to the Company

Increase adjustments
Difference in revaluation of financial asset
FVTPL
Remuneration of the Board of Directors
Non-deductible expenses
Other

Decrease adjustments
Diffarence in revaluation of financial asset
FVTPL

Current CIT expense

56

Current year
VND

Previous year
VND

481,449,841,643
96,289,968,309

25,570,727, 438
178,400,000
5,253,884,498
305,174,965

(35,303,191,5623)

93,294,963,687

283,448,445,344
56,689,689,069

25,404,277,188
115,545,455
122,658,094
149,478,240

~ (61,247,789,086)

21,233,858,960




Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued)
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

36.

36.3

37.

37.1

CORPORATE INCOME TAX (continued)

Deferred CIT expense

BOS-CTCK

The Company recognized the deferred CIT expense and deferred CIT assets with the
mavements in the current year and the year ended 31 December 2024 below:

Statement of financial position

income statement

Ending balance Beginning balance
VND

Deferred tax liabilities
Difference in
revaluation
of financial
asset FVTPL
Unearned

12,487,161,153

revenue _ _ =
12,487,161,163 _ 21,530,610,438

22,219,625,238

(689,014,800)

Current year Previouts year
VD VIND VND

(9,732,464,085) (33,694,742 564)

689,014,800 .
(9,043,449,285) (33,694,742,564)

OTHER INFORMATION

Related parly fransactions

Parties are considered to be related parties of the Company if one party has the ability to
cantrol the other party or exercise significant influence over the other party in making financial
and operating decisions, or when the Company and other party are under commean control or
under common significant influence. Related parties can be enterprise or individual, including
close members of the family of any such individual.

Details of the relationship between the Company and related parties are as follows:

Related party

Relationship

Mr. Do Anh Tu
Ms. Truong Thi Hoang Lan

Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra

Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Tung

Mr. Ta Quang Lueng

Ms. Pham Thi Huyen Trang
Mr. Le Quoc Hung

Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Tam

Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong
Ms. Ngo Thi Le Thanh

Tien Phong Commercial

Joint Stock Bank

Chairman

Vice-Chaiwoman

cum Independent Member of Board of Directors
Member of Board of Directors

and General Director

Member of Board of Directors

Member of Board of Directors

Member of Board of Directors

Independent Member of Board of Directors
Head of Board of Supervision

Member of Board of Supervision

Member of Board of Supervision

Shareholders of the Company (owning 9.01%)
and related persons of the Company's managers
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BO9-CTCK

as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

37.  OTHER INFORMATION (continued)

37.1  Related party transactions (continued)
Significant transactions with related parties during the year are as follows:

Current year Previous year

Related parties Transactions VND VND
Tien Phong Borrowings 8,250,000,000,000  8,800,000,000,000
Commercial Loan interest 83,739,332,665 93,101,807,434

515,000,000,000 150,000,000,000

Joint Stock Bank  Term deposit

Interest income fram
term deposit

Deposit interest
Deposits interest paid for
investors

Service expenses

Service income

4,708,137,935 -
2,632,490477 3,640,126,259
2,417,221, 771
193,145,836
987,969,203

1,5659,618,162
5,947,997 879
1,707,750,000

Board of Directors,
Board of
Supervision and
the management

Remuneration, salary and

other benefit 6,300,000,000 4,464,000,000
Details of remuneration of the Board of Directors and Board of Supervision of the Company

during the year are as follows:

Current year  Previous year

Name Position VND VND
Board of Director
Mr. Do Anh Tu President 280,000,000 240,000,000
Ms. Truong Thi Hoang Lan Vice-Chairvomen cum

Independent Member 280,000,000 240,000,000
Ms. Bui Thi Thanh Tra Member 140,000,000 82,272,727
Ms. Nguyen Thi Le Tung Member 100,000,000 -
Mr. Ta Quang Luong Member 100,000,000 -
Ms. Pham Thi Huyen Trang Member 100,000,000 -
Mr. Le Quoc Hung Independent Member 100,000,000 -
Mr. Tran Son Hal Member - 37,727,273
Board of Supervision
Ms, Dinh Thi Ngoc Mai Head of Board 20,000,000 41,136,364
Ms. Pham Thi Thanh Tam Head of Board 42,000,000 -
Ms. Ngo Thi Le Thanh Member 49,000,000 48,000,000
Mr. Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong Member 33,000,000 -
Ms. Dang Si Thuy Tam Member 16,000,000 48,000,000
Ms. Tran Thanh Huong Head of board - 18,863,636
Board of Management 5,040,000,000 3,708,000,000

Balances with related parties at the reporting date are as follows:

Receivables
Ending balance  Beginning balance
Related parties Transactions o VND VD
Tien Phong Deposit for settlement of
Commercial Joint  the Company 485,859,367,403 579,314,382,945
Stock Bank Deposit for settliement of

617,670,605 207
515,000,000,000

1,037,535,624,622
150,000,000,000

investor at the Company
Term deposit
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) BO9-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

37.

37.3

37.4

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
Operating lease commitments

The Company currently leases its offices under the operating lease contracts. As at 31
December 2024, the future rental fee payables as stated in the rental contracts are as follows:

Ending balance  Beginning balance

gty VD VND
Within 1 year 15,032,149,354 10,567,224,670
From 1 - 5 years 4,382,121,924 - 7,848,979 628

19,414,271,278 __ 18,416,204,298

Purposes and policies of financial risk management

Financial liabilities of the Company mainly comprised of trade payables and other payables.
Primary purpose of financial liabilities is to finance main business operation of the Company.
The Company possesses financial assets at FVTPL, loans, receivables from customers and
other receivables, cash on hand and short-term deposit incurring directly from business
operation of the Company. The Company does not hold or issue any derivative instruments.

The Company is exposed to market risk, credit risk and liquidity risk in its daily operation.

Risk management is integral to the whole business of the Company. The Company has a
system of control in place to achieve an acceptable balance between the cost of risks
occurring and the cost of managing the risks. Management continually monitors the
Company's risk management process to ensure that an appropriate balance between risk and
control is achieved.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

37.

37.4

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
Purposes and policies of financial risk management (continued)

The Board of Directors reviews and agrees palicies for managing each of these risks which
are summarized as below,

Market risk

Market risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market prices. Market price comprises four types of risk
interest rate risk, currency risk, commodity price risk and other price risk, such as equity price
risk. Financial instruments affected by market risk including financial asset at FVTPL, loans,
deposits and available-for-sale investments.

Interest rate risk

Interest rate risk is the risk that the fair value or future cash flows of a financial instrument will
fluctuate because of changes in market interest rates. The Company’s exposure to market
risk for changes in interest rate relates primarily to the Company’s cash, short-term deposits
and HTM investment.

The Company manages interest rate risk by looking at the competitive structure of the market
to obtain relevant interest policies, which are favorable for its purposes within its risk
management limits.

A sensitivity analysis is not performed for the interest rate risk as the Company's financial
instrument bearing fixed interest rate.

Share price risk

The Company's listed and unlisted equity securities are susceptible to market price risk arising
from uncertainty about future values of the investment securities. The Company manages
share price risk by establishing investment limit. Board of Director of the Company also
reviews and approves decisions to invest in shares,

Changes in share price can affect to the Company’s profit and equity.

At the reporting date, the fair value of both the Company’s listed shares and unlisted shares
in the list of financial assets recorded through profit/loss of the Company is VND
478,064,567,360 (31 December 2023: VND 405,288,446,260). If the price of these stocks
decreases by 10%, the Company's pre-tax profit will decrease by approximately VND
47.806,456,736 (31 December 2023. VND 40,528,844,260). If the price of these stocks
increases by 10%, the Company's pre-tax profit will increase to approximately VND
47,806,456,736 (31 December 2023: VND 40,528,844,260).
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company

NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

37.

374

OTHER INFORMATION (continued)
Purposes and policies of financial risk management (continued)

Credit risk

Credit risk is the risk that counterparty will not meet its obligations under a financial instrument
or customer contract, leading to a financial loss. The Company is exposed to credit risk from
its operating activities (primarily for margin loans, advances to customers and trade
receivables) and from its financing activities, including deposits with banks, HTM investments.

Trade recsivables

The Company based on its established policies, procedures and controls relating to customer
credit risk management manages customer credit risk.

The Company is regularly monitored outstanding customer receivables and required secured
methods or credit insurance to large customers’ receivables. The requirement for impairment
is analyzed at each reporting date on an individual basis for major clients. The Company has
maintained strict control over its outstanding receivables and has a credit control department
to minimize credit risk. In view of the aforementioned and the fact that the Company's trade
receivables relate to a large number of diversified customers, there is no significant
concentration of credit risk.

Deposits at banks

The Company's bank balances are mainly maintained with well-known banks in Vietnl
Gredit risk from balances with banks is managed by the Company's accounting depart

in accordance with the Company’s policy. The Company's maximum exposure to creditbri
for the components of the balance sheet at each reporting dates are the carrying amou
The Company evaluates the concentration of credit risk in respect to bank deposit as low.
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Tien Phong Securities Joint Stock Company
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (continued) B09-CTCK
as at 31 December 2024 and for the year ended

38. EVENT AFTER THE BALANCE SHEET DATE (continued)

There is no matter or circumstance that has arisen since the balance sheet date that requires
adjustment or disclosure in the financial statements of the Company.

roved by: m/

Gé_NG TY
CO PHAN
CHI:JNG KHOA

App

Prepared by: Reviewed by:
A9 -

Ms. Le Trang Thuy Dung Ms. Nguyen Thanh Tuyen W_Nguyen Trat Minh Phuong

Accountant Chief Accountant Deputy Director of Risk
Management and Compliance

Ho Chi Minh City, Vietnam

4 April 2025
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